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I THE CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE SOCIETY OF PAKISTAN LTD

VISION / MISSION & VALUES

Vision Statement
Ouvr vision is to be the best insurance society.

Mission Statement
Our mission is to provide top quality insurance services fo our valued clients, improve the
business processes and quality of our human resource,

Values

Our values are:

» Integrity

We believe in honesty, integrity and fransparency.

» Ethics

Ethics is one of our core values and we strictly follow ethical principals in our business
conduct.

» Professionalism

We believe that professionalism can help us in achieving success and goals of our
organization,

» Excellence

We strive to achieve excellence in what we do.

» Commitment
We have strong commitment fowards serving our clienfs as per their expectations.

= LAy



IR THE CO-OPERATIVE INSURANCE SOCIETY OF PAKISTAN LTD \

STATEMENT OF ETHICS & BUSINESS PRACTICE

Introduction and objective
The Cooperative Insurance Society of Pakistan Limited is the apex cooperative soclety registered under the

Cooperative Societies Act, 1925 on August 06, 1949, and Is engaged In provision of general insurance services,
The objectives of the society are to provide general insurance services, particularly to the cooperative sector
in Pakistan helping them to meet their insurance needs. The Cooperative Insurance Society has an enhanced
commitment and professionalism to provide expertise at a distinct level.

The Statement of Ethics and Statement of Business Practices that all members of staff and Directors are
required to follow as "Code of Conduct" is given below.

Statement of Ethics
All Directors and Staff are required to:
»  Act with integrity, dignity and in an ethical manner when dealing with the public, clients, and peers.
*  Always protect the confidentiality of dlient information except where required by law to disclose it.
*  Protect the confidentiality of information relating to the Society both during Directorship or employment
and after retirement / termination as well.
*  Obtain written permission, other than directors, from the Society's Compliance Officer /the Chief
Executive Officer to hold any position, paid or unpaid, with any outside party. firm or organization.
* Maintain accurate records of business transactions related to the Society or its clients.
*  Report any business or professional activities or any beneficial interests that may result in a conflict with
or be competitive with the interests of the Society.
= Report any person or activity to the Compliance Officer / CEO that in their opinion s in violation of this

statement.

Statement of Business Practices:
s Our business is founded on trust, and we manage it ethically, lawfully, and fairly.

We hold responsibilities towards our clients in the highest regard.
s We recruit the most suitable workforce, mativate them, reward them, and encourage them to innovate.

-

We contribute towards our Society's financial goals and concentrate on achieving superior results.
We believe in quality in every task assigned to us and work to the best of our efforts.

« We work hard in provision of quality services to our clients.

dn A A =

Chairman Vice Chairman Dlrector



'KRESTON

Amin Building,
&5 - Tha Mall, Lahore

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of The Cooperative Insurance Society of Pakistan Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of The Cooperative Insurance Society of
Pakistan Limited (the “Society”), which comprise of the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024,
and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity,
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of
the audit,

In our opinion, and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017}, in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of society’s affairs as at December 31, 2024 and of the profit, its comprehensive income,
the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinicn

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Insurance Ordinance,
2000 and, Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017}, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Society's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the society or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Boards of directors are responsible for overseeing the Society's financial reporting process.

Other Offices ai:  Karachi - Falsalabad - Islamabad
Web site: www.krestonhb.com

Phone: 042-37352661-37321043

HYDER BHIMJ' 8[ Co Email: krestanhbitbgmal com
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Our  objectives are to obtain  reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free  from  material  misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's  report  that  includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s a  high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
agrregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or errer, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

My =  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
ﬁ the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Society's internal control;

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of managements wuse of the going Concern  basis  of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Society's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusfons are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the society to cease to
continue as a going concem.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) Proper books of accounts have been kept by society as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) The statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement
- of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity
° J with the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), and are in agreement with the books of
account;
¢} Investments made, expenditures incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of Society's
business;
d) Mo Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (xXVIll of 1980).

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Society for the year ended December 31, 2022 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmadified opinion on those financial statements on October 31, 2024,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Syed Aftab Hameed.

f Bl |
K’iﬂ-ﬁ»« \ \) : .
LAHORE: July 02, 2025 KRESTON HYDER EHIMJI & CO. Wl
UDIN: AR202410475Ce0IvSYAr CHARTERED ACJOUNTANTS
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DEPE . IEW REPO

To the members of The Cooperative Insurance Sociely of Pakistan Limited
Review Report of the Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of The Cooperative Insurance Society of Pakistan Limited
(the Society) for the year ended December 31, 2024 to comply with the requirements of Code of Corporate
Governance for Insurers, 2016 (the Code).

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Society, Our respensibility is to
review, to the extent where such compliance con be objectively verified, whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Society's compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
complionce with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Society's personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Societly to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal contrel systems sufficient to plan the audit ond develop on effective audit approach. We are not required to
consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal controls covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion
on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Society's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Society te place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,
place before the Board of Directors for their review and opproval of its reloted party transactions distinguishing
between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those thot prevail in arm’s length transactions and transactions
which are not executed ot orm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing
mechanism. We are only required and have ensured complionce of this requirement to the extent of the approval of
the related party transactions by the Boord of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We hove not
carried out any procedures 1o determine whether the related party transactions were undertoken at arm's length price
or not.

We highlighted below instances of non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations:

a. Board has not setup the effective internal audit department as head of Internal Audit does not meet the required
qualification as mentiened in clause XXl of the Code of Corpeorate Governance for Insurers, 2016. Further, the job
description of the person appointed as Internal auditor is not approved by the Board nor its terms of reference
ore defined by the Board Audit Commiitee.

b. The Chief Financial Officer of the society does not meet the required qualification as mentioned in clouse XXI of
the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

¢. MNone of the Directors has attended the Director's training pregram.

d. Only three meetings of audit committee, claim committee, underwriting committee, risk management & compliance
/ committee, investment committee, reinsurance committee were held during the year on random basis instead of

quarterly meetings os required by clause XLIll of the Code of Corperate Governance for Insurers, 2016. Fun.her,
although the Board of directors have met four times during the year but have not met in each guarter as required
by the Code owing to their approval from SECP on April 01, 2024,

Other Offices ai:  Karachi - Faisalabad - Islamabad
Web site: www krestonhb.com
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e. No meeting of audit committee on the annual cudited financial statements of the Society for the year ended
December 31, 2023 and interim financial statements for the half year ended June 30, 2024 waos held os required
by clouse LIV of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 and accordingly the annual audited ond
half yearly financial statements were not recommended by the audit committee fo the Board of Directors for
approval in their following meetings as mentioned in clause LYi(c) of the Code of Corporate Governance for
Insurers, 2016, Further, the requirements of audit committee to meet the external auditors at least annually without
the presence of head of intemal audit and Chief Financial Officer has not been complied with as mentioned in
clause LV of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016. Moreover, the management letter issued by
the predecessor auditors was alse not discussed in the following cudit committee meetings as required by clause
LVi(e) of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 and accordingly the weaknesses as highlighted
by the external auditors were not communicated to the Board of Directors (BOD) for necessary action as revealed
from the certified copies of minutes of BOD,

f. The Invesimen! Committee is not constituted in accordance with Clause XLIV of the Code of Corporate Governance
for Insurers, 2016, as it does not include the Chief Executive Officer.

g. The Company Secretary did not attend the meetings of Board of Directors held during the year as mentioned in
clause XXl of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

h. Half yearly financial statements were neither prepared nor the external auditors were invited to carry out their
review as menticned in clause XXVI of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016.

Bosed on our review, except for the above instances of non-compliance, nothing has come to our attention which causes
us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriotely reflect the Cooperative Insurance Society of
Pakistan Limiied's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code, as applicable 1o

the Society for the year ended December 31, 2024,
£ X .
i)y

LAHORE: July 02, 2025 KRESTOMN HYDER BHIMII & CO.
UDIN: CR202410475JT36duEwWN CHARTERED ACCQUNTANTS
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THE COOPERATIVE INSURANCE SOCIETY OF PKAISTAN LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

The Cooperative Insurance Society of Pakistan Limited (th= Soclety) was incorporated on August 06, 1949,
as a cooperative society under the Cooperative Societies Act, 1925. The Society Is engaged in non-life
insurance business.

The Directors of your Society are pleased to present the 76" Annual Report of the Society for the year
ended December 31, 2024,

Your Society's profit after tax for the year 2024 was Rs. 3,325,368/ as compared to profit of Rs.
5,902,859/~ in 2023 accounts and EPS 0.067 and 0.118 respectively.

Your Society has underwritten Rs. 30,581,213/- Direct Premium inside Pakistan as compared to

Rs. 32,934,045/- in 2023 showing a decrease of 7.14%, while the Net Premium Revenue was Rs.

L 24,628,791/- as compared to Rs. 25,263,214/- in 2023. Underwriting loss was Rs. 2,496,465/- compared
" to Rs. 3,879,776/-in 2023.

Amounts in Rupees

PREMIUM WRITTEN

16,000,000 15,218,033

14,000,000 12,9751

11,746,469
12,000000

10,000,000

8,000,000 7,149,166

6,000,000

r} ] 4,000,000

™~ 2,000,000

FIRE MARINE MISCELLNEQUS

w2024 w2023

Given the insurance sector’s potential for expansion and growth, your Society is expected to have growth
in underwriting profits in the ensuing years.

The segment wise performance was as follows:
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FIRE AND PROPERTY

The written premium increased by 11.16% to Rs. 11,746,469/- as compared to Rs. 10,566,846/- in 2023.
Claim expense as percentage of net premium revenue is 7.82% against 3.25% in 2023, The underwriting
result for the year 2024 was in loss by Rs. (878,706)/- as compared to loss in Previous year 2023 of Rs.
(1,219,755)/-.

MARINE, AVIATION AND TRANSPORT
The Society has not underwritten any business in this sector.
MOTOR

The written premium decreased by 18.04% to Rs. 5,859,558/- compared to Rs. 7,149,166/- in 2023, Claim
expense as percentage of net premium revenue is 7.29% against 11.15% in 2023. The underwriting profit
for the year was Rs. 349,505/- as compared to loss of Rs. (743,201)/- in 2023.

MISCELLEANOUES (LIVESTOCK & OTHERS)

The written premium decreased by 14.74% to Rs. 12,975,186/- compared to Rs. 15,218,033/-in 2023. The
claim expense as a percentage of net premium revenue was -1.43% in the year under report as compared
to 2.71% in Previous year. The underwriting loss for the year was Rs. (1,967,265)/- as compared to loss of
Rs. (1,916,820)/-in 2023.

500,000, 5 s a0 505

“MARINED (e
ey

{1,500,

(2,000,000

1 aa e oant
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Investment Income

The dividend income for the year 2024 was Rs. 3,047,142/- as against Rs. 1,754,995/- last year. The total
investment income for the year was Rs. 3,315,093/- as against Rs. 1,826,149/- last year.

Information Technology

The Society continues to invest in technology to offer state of the art service to the customers. In year
2018 a customized accounting software was developed and tested on trial basis. The performance of the
accounting software was satisfactory. It was fully functional in the year ended December 31, 2019. The
Society is continuously improving the accounting software to meet the informational and reporting needs
of the Society and all Society’s data is cloud base now as per SECP guideline the Society purchased paid
Software (MS office, Power Bi and Microsoft Automate). The System of the Society is secured from cyber-
attacks risk. During the year, the Society enhanced its internal control system within the software
environment in line with applicable rules and regulations. Furthermore, necessary updates were
incorporated into the software to ensure compliance with the regulatory requirements of the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Appropriation

The profit after tax is Rs. 3,325,368/ as compared to profit of Rs. 5,902,859/ in the Previous Year.
Credit Rating

Your Society is rated by JCR-VIS who has assigned rating of BB+ with stable outlook.

Prospects for 2025

Your Board of Directors are optimistic as to the prospects for the year 2025. Qur strategy for 2025 is
designed to deliver sustainable, profitable growth in a changing and competitive business environment to
fetch a due share in the industry.

The Society intends to continue investing in people and making the Cooperative Insurance the best place
to build career, invest in systems and processes to further improve service to customers.

Reinsurance

Your Society continues to enjoy very sound reinsurance arrangements with government owned entity
Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited which is ‘AA+ rated reinsurer.

Related Party Transactions

There has been no transaction with related party except of the payment of Salary to Key Management
Staff
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Capital Management and Liquidity

The Society maintains strong financial base. Your Society carefully administers its liquidity to ensure its
ability to meet all its obligations efficiently. The Society operates and honors its obligations through the
cash flow generated from its core business as well as investment and other income.

Board Committees

Your Society maintains following board committees:

Ethics / Compliance and Risk Management Committee

The ethics / compliance and risk management committee oversee the activities of the risk management
function of the Society and makes appropriate recommendations to the Board to mitigate probable risks
falling within the purview of the risk management function.

The committee is also responsible for monitoring the compliance function and the insurer's risk profile in
respect of compliance with the laws applicable to i as well as the internal policies and procedures. The
committee consists of following members:

Name of the Member Category

Mr. Asad-ul-Hag Piracha - Chairman Non-executive director
Mr. Ahmed Igbal Zaheer - Member Non-executive director
Mr. Fahad Amjad-A.CFO (Member/ Secretary)

Remuneration Committee & Nomination Committee

The committee is responsible for recommending to the Board human resource management policies of
the Society as well as the selection, evaluation, and compensation of key officers of the Saciety. The
Board's Human Resource and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following members:

Name of the Member Category

Col. Saleem Masoad (r) = Chairman h Non-executive director
Mr. Ahmed Igbal Zaheer - Member Non-executive director
Mr. Fateh Khan Niazi-CEO (Member/ Secretary)
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As part of the Corporate Governance, your Society maintains following five management committees
which meet at least once every quarter:

Investment Committee

The Society has a Board level investment committee to review the investment portfolio. The committee
is also responsible for developing the investment policy for the Society. The Board's Investment
Committee comprises of the following members:

Name of the Member Category
Mr. Asad Ul Haq Piracha Chairman Non-executive Director
Col. Saleem Masood (r)- -Member Non-executive director
Mr. Fahad Amjad- A.CFO (Secretary)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is assisted by the Head of Internal Auditor in reviewing the adequacy of operational
controls in monitoring and managing risks to provide reasonable assurance that such system continues to
operate satisfactorily and effectively in the Society. The principal responsibility of the Head of Internal
Auditors is to conduct periodic audits to ensure adequacy in operational controls, consistency in
application of policies and procedures and compliance with applicable laws. The Board's Audit Committee
comprises of the following members:

Name of the Member Category

Col. Saleem Masood(r)- Chairman Non-executive director
Mr. Ghulam Shabbir Malik-Member Non-executive director
Mr. Shahbaz Hussain Khadim-HOIA (Member/secretary)

Underwriting Committee

The underwriting committee formulates the underwriting policy of your Society. It sets out the criteria for
assessing various types of insurance risks and determines the premium policy of different insurance
covers, The committee regularly reviews the underwriting and premium policies of the Society with due
regard to relevant factors such as its business portfoiio and the market development. The members of the
underwriting committee are as follow:
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Name of the Member Category

Mr. Asad-ul-Hagq Piracha = Chairman Non-executive director

Mr. Ghulam Sajjad Hussain- Member | Non-executive director

Mr. Malik Muhammad Ashraf (Member/ Secretary)

Claims Settlement Committee

This committee devises the claims settling policy of the Society. It oversees the claims position of the
Society and ensures that adequate claims reserves are maintained. Particular attention is paid to
significant claims cases or events, which give rise to a series of claims. The Claims Settlement Committee
determines the circumstances under which the claims dispute to be brought to its attention and decides
how to deal with such claim’s disputes. It also overse=s the implementation of the measures for combating
fraudulent claims cases. The Committee also oversees the newly established Grievance Function of the
Society. The members of Claims Settlement committee are as follow:

Name of the Member Category

Col. Saleem Masood (r}= Chairman Non-executive director
Mr. Imtiaz-ul-Hassan— Member Mon-executive director
Mr. Fahad Amjad-A.CFO (Member/ Secretary)

Reinsurance and Coinsurance Committee

This committee ensures that adequate reinsurance arrangements are made for the Society's business. It
peruses the proposed reinsurance arrangements prior to their execution, reviews the arrangements from
time to time and subject to the consent of the participatingu reinsurers, makes appropriate adjustments
to those arrangements in the light of the market development. It also assesses the effectiveness of the
reinsurance program for future reference. The committee consists of following members:

Name of the Member Category

Mr. Ghulam Shabbir Malik = Chairman Non-executive director
Mr. Ahmed Igbal Zaheer — Member Non-executive director
Mr. Muhammad Jamil (Member /Secretary)
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Risks to Business

Business risks and mitigation factors are described in detail at Note # 27 of the audited financial
statements.

Environmental protection measures

The Society is aware of its social responsibility in regard to environmental protection. Therefore, we
encourage healthy environment and take steps which could add value to our belief.

Directors Election and Meetings

The Directors of your Society were elected at the Annual General Meeting held on October 29, 2023, for
a term of three years. The attendance at the meeting was as under:

Sr.No MName No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
held Attend

Mr. Asad-ul-Haq Piracha
Col, Saleem Masood (r)
Mr. Ahmed lgbal Zaheer
Mr. Ghulam Shabbir Malik
Mr, Imtiaz-ul-Hassan

Mr. Ghulam Sajjad Hussain

(= I B~ FE R
B h b b
Lo R - -

Statement of Ethics and Business Practices

The Board has adopted the Statement of Ethics and Business Practices. All employees are informed of this
statement and are required to observe these rules of conduct in relation to business and regulations.
Statement of Ethics and Business Practices are based on integrity, dignity, culture of excellence and ethical
dealing with clients, peers, and the public.

Chief Executive Officer's Performance Review

The Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") is responsible for supervising, leading and effectively managing the
strategic and overall affairs of the Society. CEQ's performance is monitored and evaluated by the Board.

Compliance with Code of Cerporate Governance

The requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance set out by the regulatory authority Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan have been duly cumplied with. A statement to this effect is annexed in
the report.

Board Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the Code of Corporate Governance, the Chairman has carried out an annual evaluation of its
Board of Directors and Committees. The Board is satisfied that its performance was effective and that the
governance structure supports sound decision-making and accountability.
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Directors' Training and Orientation

In accordance with Code, the Society is committed to ensuring that at least one director acquires formal
training under a SECP-approved Directors Training Program (DTP) every year. During the year, the
following independent directors added in the Board whose completed their DTP certification:

* Mrs. Uzma Adil Khan (Independent Director)
¢ Mr. Imran Akhtar (Independent Director)

Risk Management Framework

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance for insurer 2016, the Society has in place a Risk
Management Framework which identifies, assesses, and manages various categories of risk including
underwriting, investment and operational risks.

The Ethics / Compliance and Risk Management Committee regularly reviews the risk profile of the
Society and ensures alignment with regulatory expectations and internal policies.

Remuneration of Directors and Executives

The aggregate remuner ation paid to the CEQ is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Directors
were paid TA/DA for attendance in the board meeting in accordance with the Board policy.

Statutory Payments:

In accordance with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016, all statutory
payments, including taxes, duties, levies, and contributions, have been duly discharged during the year to
the best of the Society’s ability, except for an outstanding balance of Rs. 657,521/- as taxes payable as of
December 31, 2024, which subsequently paid and disclosed in the financial in note 14.

Going Concern Assumption

In compliance with Regulation XXIV(h)(v) and relevant provisions of IAS 1 (Presentation of Financial
Statements) and ISA 570, the Board has reviewed the Society’s financial position. The Board is satisfied
that the Society has adequate resources to continue its operations in the foreseeable future and hence

the financial statements have been prepared on a going concerning basis.

Land & Building Lahore

The Cooperative Insurance Society of Pakistan Limited (“the Society”) is the registered owner in
possession of property located at 23-The Mall, Lahore, measuring 8 Kanals, 7 Marlas, and 112.5 Sq. Ft,,
acquired through a registered sale deed dated 24-03-1964 and a subsequent transfer order dated 24-12-
1964. In 1972, the Government of Pakistan issued a directive appointing a trustee and sub-trustee to take
over the property, agzinst which the Society filed Writ Petition No. 819/1972 before the Lahore High
Court. The petition was decided in the Society's favar on 03-11-1992, declaring the directive unlawful and
remanding the matter Lo the Insurance Appellate Tribunal, which dismissed it for lack of jurisdiction. A
civil suit filed thereafter was decreed in the Society’s favor on 15-01-1999, and despite subsequent

Page 8 of 9



litigation, the Society's claim and possession were reaffirmed. In 2018, the State Life Insurance
Corporation of Pakistan filed an application under ection 12(2) of the CPC, 1908, challenging the 1992
judgment, which was zllowed by the Lahore High Court on 17-04-2025. The Society, aggrieved by this
order, has filed a petition before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of Pakistan challenging its maintainability
and legality and seeking suspension thereof. No adjustment has been made in the financial statements as
the property remains inn the Society’s possession and the matter is sub judice. As the Society is the legal
owner of the property, and its management and legal counsel are hopeful of a favorable outcome.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Society present fairly its situation, the
result of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained *:y the Society.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments.

d) The International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departure from there has been adequately disclosed.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and menitored.
f) There are no significant doubts upon the Society's ability to continue as a going concern.

g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance.

h) The key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed.

i) There has been no trading of shares by Chief Executive, Directors, Chief Financial Officer, Society
Secretary, their spouses, and minor children as the shares of the society are not listed on any stock

exchange.

j) All the shareholders of the Society are cooperative societies and there is no individual shareholders as
the same are barred under the law.

We would like to thank our valued customers for their continued patronage and support and to Pakistan
Reinsurance Company Lunited, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for their guidance and
assistance. The Directors of your Society also place on record their appreciation of the efforts made by
officers, field force and staff for their dedicated effc- ts for the Society.

L1

Chairman
On Behalf of Board of Uirectors
Dated: 30 -04-202 ¢

Page 90of 9



sis f

THE COOPERATIVE INSURANCE SOCIETY OF
PAKISTAN LIMITED

FINNACIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

haty.



THE COOPERATIVE INSURANCE SOCIETY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these fiy

137 sl

74

7!

cial statements.

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

Assels
Property and equipment 4 2,349,686,530 2,353,034,703
Investment property 5 96,858,600 87,907 988
Investments:

Equity securities 6 131,398,570 85,948 956

Term deposits 4,011,450 2,511,450
Sundry recevables i 4,047,047 4,253,064
Insurance / reinsurance receivables 863,435 1,290,667
Secunty deposits 8 59,400 59,400
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 17 166,328 166,347
Ceferred commission expense 18 2,214,554 2,390,702
_.2x-tion - payment less provisions 2,555,972 2,357,997
X4 reinsurance premium 6 4,660,606 4,452,173
Cash and bank balances 9 7,612,026 12,059,298
Total Assets 2,604,134,518 2,556,432,745
Equity and Liabilities
Share Capital and Reserves attributable to Society's equity holders
Ordinary share capital 10 500,032,400 500,032,400
Reszrves 1 1,919,633,756 1,889,628,924
Unappropnated profit 96,988,073 91,398,311
Total Equity 2,516,654,229 2,481,069,635
Liabilities
Underwriling provisions
Outstanding claims including IBNR 17 1,728,872 1,694,965
Unzarned premium reserves 16 14,827,652 16,123,883
Ln=amed reinsurance commission 12 918,717 896,197

“1RY red taxation 13 60,910,754 48,989,595

. surance | reinsurance payables 2,926,905 1,305,440
uncizimed dividend 238,189 238,189
Other creditors and accruals 14 5,929,200 6,124,841
Total Liabilities 87,480,289 75,373,110
Tota! Equity and Liabilities 2,604,134,518 2,556,432,745
Contingencies and Commitments 15
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THE COOPERATIVE INSURANCE SOCIETY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Note
Net insurance premium 16
Net insurance claims 17
Net commission and other acquisition costs 18
Insurance claims and acquisition expenses
Premium deficiency reserve
Management expenses 19
Underwriting results
Investment income 20
Rental income
Other income 21
Administrative and general expenses 22
Results of operating activities
Profit before levy and taxation
Levy 23
Profit before taxation
Income tax expense 24
Profit after taxation
Earnings per share - Basic 29

®

EXECUTIVE

a The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

[, 4Ll

G

Restated
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
24,628,791 25,263,214
(719,289) (1,040,5095)
(3,354,633) (3,551,087)
(4,073,922) (4,591,592)
(23,051,334) (24,551,398)
(23,051,334)  (24,551,398)
(2,496,465) (3,879,776)
3,315,093 1,826,149
10,468,755 10,418,416
9,374,343 12,655,696
(17,582,617)|| (15,238,450)
5,575,574 9,660,811
3,079,109 5,781,035
(1,012,970) (878,139)
2,066,139 4,902,896
1,259,229 999,963
3,325,368 5,902,859
0.067 0.118
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THE COOPERATIVE INSURANCE SOCIETY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
_Note Rupees Rupees

Profit after taxation 3,325,368 5,902,859
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Gain on re-measurement of fair value of equity securities
Unrealized gain on re-measurement of available for sale financial assets 6.1.2 45,449,614 22,007,539
Deferred tax liability attributable to unrealized gain (13,180,388) (6,382,186)

32,269,226 15,625,353
R.valuation surplus on land and buildings
-%.2¥ 15 on revaluation of property and equipment 11.4 - 128,931,796
Deferred tax liability attributable to revaluation surplus . (6,787,971)

. 122,143,825

Ctner comprehensive income for the year 32,269,226 137,769,178
Total comprehensive income for the year 35,504,594 143,672,037

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE COOPERATIVE INSURANCE SOCIETY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Cash flow from operating aclivilies
Underwriting activities

Insurance premum received
Reinsurance premium paid

Claims pad
Reinsurance and other recoveries received

Comnussion pad

Commission received

Undenwriting receipts / (payments)

Other underwriting receipls { (payments)

Net cash inflows from underwriting activities
Other operating aclivities

Levy and income lax paid

General management expenses paid

Mher operating payments

Net cash outflows from other operating activities
Total cash outflows from all operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Profit { return received on TORs
Dividends received
Rent recewved

Proceeds frem disposal of propery and equipment
{Investments in lerm deposits) / encashment of investment

Fixed capital expendilure
Net cash inflows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Net cash fiows from financing activities
Net cash outflows from all activities
*23h and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Reconciliation of operating cash flows to statement of profit or loss

Operaling cash flows

Depreciation expense

Amorlization of computer software

Gain on disposal of property and equipment

Balances written off

Increase in assels other than cash

Decrease / (increase) in liabilities other than running finance
Interest, dividend and rental income for the year

Increase in fair value of Investmenl property

Profit after taxation

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statement

’{én VEZ gmmcm OFFICER

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
16 30,589,213 || 32.934.045
16 (TA57,088)|| (7.215615)
17 (1,082810)|| (780,185
17 397 447 154 407
18 (4,347,139)] | (4553021
18 1191474 || 1,142530
2,048,697 || (1.147.201)
375,792 | | (1,120,045)
21,707,288 19316034
(1,210,945) (929,832
(22,414,482)| | (23.280832)
(13,006,406)| | (11.563.261)
(36,631,833) (35808925
(14,924,545)  (16.492.891)

. 145,172

20 3,047,442 || 1,754,885
10,566,931 || 10,255,919

43 1,047,000 i
6.2.1 (1,500,000)| | 1,000,000
4 (2,683,800) (408.418)
10,477,273 12,748,668
I - -]
(4447,2712) (3744223
12,059,298 15,803,521
1,612,026 _ 12.059.298
(14,924,545)  (16,492.891)
4 (5,406,153)  (4,335.445)
v (89.800)

421,180

- (59.340)

230241 3517313
18,826 (758,310)

14035207  11,366.426

5 8,950,612 1265569

325,368

9);\1‘!«{?4‘ -

" DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

CHAIRMAN



THE COOPERATIVE INSURANCE SOCIETY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 34, 2024
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Legal Status and Operations

The Cooperative Insurance Society of Pakistan Limited (‘the Soclely® or "Soclely’) was Incorporaled as a Cooperalive Sociely under tho
Cooperative Socioties Act, 1925 on August 6, 1949 and registered under Insurance Ordinance, 2000 on January 01, 2001. Itis primarily engaged in
general insurance business including bire, motor, hivestock msurance

The registered office of the Sociely is situaled al Cooperative Insurance Bullding, 23 Shahrah-o-Quald-e-Azam, Lahare.
Geographical location and addresses of its branch offices are as follows.

:;‘ Branch Address

1 |Fasalabad Quaid e-Azam Road, Tandlianwala, Faisalabad.

2 |Gupanwala 588 Trust Plaza G.T. Road, Gujranwala.

3 [Shekhupura Opp: Habib Bank Lid, Lahore Read, Shaikupura

4 |Sargodha Opp. City Pos| Office, Main Road, Block No.5, Sargodha,
5 |Rawalpindi 5318, Haider Road, Rawalpindi.

6 |[Oxara Clo. Haji Melars, G.T.Road, Renala Khurd, Ckara

T |Rahim Yar Khan B 80, Umer Block, Abbasia Town, Rahim Yar Khan,

§ [Sahwal House No. 775, M-Block, Fareed Town, Sahiwal.

9 |Karachi Olfice No. 18, Kareem Plaza, Near Civic Cenlre, Gulshan-g-Igbal, Karachi,
10 |D.G Khan Block No. 2, Quaid-e-Azam Road, Dera Ghazi Khan.

Basis of Preparation

Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved
acsounting standards comprise of:

Intemational Financial Reporling Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASE) as are nolified under
the Companies Acl, 2017, and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Ihe Insurance Ordinance, 2000, Insurance Rules, 2017 and Insurance
Accounting Regulations, 2017.

In case requirements differ, the prowisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Insurance
Rules, 2017 and the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017 shall prevail,

These financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the formal prescribed under Insurance Rules, 2017 and Insurance Accounting
Regqulations 2017

These financial statements provide comparalive information in respect of the previous year. When there is a refrospeclive application of an
accounting policy or comeclion of eror, a refrespeclive restatement, or a reclassification of items in these financial statemenls has been made,
Duning the year, a restatement / reclassification has been made in these financial statements for the change in accounting policy as disclosed in
Note 2.5 of these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These financial stalements have been prepared under the historical cost convention withoul taking into account any adjustments for the effects of
inflation or current values, excepl as disclosed in malerial accounting policy information refating 1o cenain assets ie. freehold Tand & building,
investment property, invesiments in cquity securilies which are measured at revalued amounts  fair values as well as other assets and liabilities in
respect of insurance / reinsurance premiums, claims, commission and deferred lax liabiliies.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Sociely operates.
Accordingly, these financial slatements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Society's functional and presentation currency. All the figures
have been rounded off 1o the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Ihe preparation of inancial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires managemenl lo make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of palices and reported amounts of assels, liabilties, income and expenses. The eslimates and associated assumplions and
Judgments are based on hislorical experience and various other faclors that are believed lo be reasonable under the circumstances, the resull of
which form the basis of making Ihe judgments about carrying values of assels and liabilities that are nol readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may difer from these estimales
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The estimales and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting eslimales are recognized in the period in
which Ihe estimale is revised il the revision effects only thal period, or in the period of revision and fulure periods if the revision affecls both current
and fulure periods

Significant arcas requinng the use of managemen! estimales in these financial slalemenls are delalled below. However, assumplions and

judgments made by management in the application of accounting policles thal have significant effect on the financial slalements are nol expected lo
resull In material adjustment lo the carrying amounts of assets and liabililies. The areas where assumplions and eslimales are significant to the

Society's financial stalements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Note
Fair values and uselul lives of propeity and equipment 3284
Useful lives of intangible assels 13
Fair values of investment property 3445
Impairment of receivables and payables related to insurance contracts 36
Provision for doubtful receivables 3T
Insurance Contracis 38
Operating segments 323
Premium deficiency resenve 39
Provision for outslanding claims (including IBNR) 310 & 17
Provision of curren! and deferred taxation 314
Imparment of financial and non-financial assets 3.26
Conlingencies and commitments 329

Change in accounting policy

Dunng the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan ({ICAP) has wilhdrawn Technical Release 27 'IAS 12, Income Taxes (Revised
2012) and issued the IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes' (Ihe Guidance). Accordingly, in accordance
with the Guidance, the Company has changed its accounting policy to recognize minimum and final laxes as ‘Levy’ under IAS 37 *Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels” which were previously being recognized as ‘Income tax', The Company has accounted for the effects
of these changes in accounting policy retrospectively under para 22 of IAS 8 *Accounting Policies, Change in Acoounting Estimates and Errors;” and
ihe corresponding figures have been restated in these financial statements. The effects of restatements are as follows:

{ Levy Reconciliation |

Had there been no Impact of change After incorperating
change in in accounting effects of change
accounting policy policy in accounting
policy
Rupees Rupees Rupees

Effect on statement of profit or loss

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Minimum tax (turnover tax) and final tax - 1,012,970 1,012,970

Profit before taxation 3,079,109 (1,012,970) 2,066,139

Taxation 246,259 1,012,970 1,259,229

Profit after taxation 3,325,368 - 3,325,368

Effect on statement of profit or loss

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Minimum tax (tumover tax) and final tax - 878,139 878,139

Profit before taxation 5,781,035 (878,139 4,902,896

Taxation 121,824 878,139 999,863

Profil after taxation 5,902,859 5 5,802,859

There is no impact on profil afler axation and eamings per share, basic and diluted.

!




2.6 Standards, interpretations and amendments lo the accounting and reporting standards as applicable In Pakistan 1hat are effective In
current year

There are cerfain new standards, amendments and interpretations that are applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024,
that are considered nol to have a matenal impact on the Company's financial slatemenls and hence summarized bolow

Effective date [#__ew amendments to standard

Classificalion of habilities as current o non-current (Amendments o IAS 1 in January 2020)
Noa current hiabilities with covenants {Amendment lo 1AS 1 in Oclober 2022)

Lease habiity in a sale and leaseback (Amendment to IFRS 16 in Seplember 2022)
Supplier finance arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7)

January 01, 2024

2.7 Standards, interpretations and amendments to the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that are not yet effective

The foliowing intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and
interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2025

Sale or contribution of assels between an inveslor and ifs associale or joint venture (amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) amend
accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assels. These amendments also introduce new acoounting for less frequent
transaction that invalves neither cost nor full step-up of certain relained interests in assels thal are not businesses. The effective date for
these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review. Early adoption continues fo be permitted.

- Lack of exchangeability (amendments to 1AS 21) clarify:
a} when a currency is exchangeable into another cumency; and
b) how a company estimales a spot rate when a currency lacks exchangeability.

Further, companies will need 1o provide new disclosures 1o help users assess the impact of using an estimated exchange rate on the financial
staiements. These disclosures might include:

the nature and financial impacls of the currency not being exchangeable;
the spot exchange rate used;

the estimation process, and

risks o the company because the currency is not exchangeable.

The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, Earfier application is permitted
Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments - Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 7

Financial Instrumenis Disclosures.
- Financial assels with ESG-linked fealures;

Under IFRS 9, it was unclear whether the conlractual cash flows of some financial asset wilh ESG-linked features represented SPPI. This could
have resulted in financial assels with ESG-linked features being measured at fair value through prefit or loss.

Although the new amendments are mare permissive, they apply to all contingent features, not just ESG- linked features, While the amendments may
allow certain financial assets with contingent features to meel the SPPI criterion, companies may need to perform additional work to prove this,
Judaement will be required in determining whether the new test is mel.

The amendments introduce an additional SPPI test for financial assets with contingent features that are not refated directly to a change in basic
lending nsks or cosls - e.q., where the cash flows change depending on whether the borrower meets an ESG targel specified in the loan conlract.

The amendments alse include additional disclosures for all financial assets and financial fiabilities that have cerain contingent features that are:

ned refated directly to a change in basic lending risks or costs; and
are not measured at farr value through profit or loss

The amendments apply for reporiing penods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. Companies can choose 1o early-adop! these amendments
{including the associated disclosure requirements), separately from the amendments for the recognition and derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities

Recegnition / Derecognition requirements of financial assels f liabililies by elecltronic payments:

ol




271

The amendmants 1o IFRS 9 danly when a financial assel or a financial liabilily Is recognized and derecognized and provide an exceplion for cerain
financial habidines seltled using an electronic payment sysiem. Companies generally derecognize their Irade payables on the settiement date (ie
when the payment 1s completed) However, the amendmenls provide an exceplion lor the derecognilion of financial liabiliies. The exception allows
the Company 1a derecognize its irade payable before the selllement dale, when il uses an electronic payment system that meets all of the following
crilenia

na praclical abelity 1o withdraw, stop or cancel the payment instruction;

no practical atlity to access the cash Lo be used for selllement as a resull of the payment instruction; and

the sellernenl nsk associaled with the electronic payment system is insignificant.

Other related amendments

Contraciually linked instruments (CLIS) and non-recourse fealures:

The amendments clarify the key characterislics of CLIs and how they differ from financial assels with non-recourse fealures. The amendments also
include factors that a company needs 1o consider when assessing the cash flows underlying a financial asset with non-recourse features (the 'lock
through' test)

- Disclosures on investments in equily inslruments:

The amendments require additional disclosures for investments in equily instruments that are measured at fair value with gains or losses presented
in other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The following amendments apply for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. Earlier application is permilted.

Annual irpeovements to IFRS Accounting Standards - Amendments 1o;
IFRS 1 Firsl-time Adoption of Inlemational Financial Reporting Standards;
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and it's accompanying Guidance on implementing
IFRS 9 Financial Instrurnents,
IFRS 10 Consolidaled Financial Stalements; and
IAS 7 Stalement of Cash flows
IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracts
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without public accountability disclosure

IFRS §1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information
IFRS 52 Climate-related Disclosures

The amendmenis to IFRS 8 address:
A conflict between IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers over the inifial measurement of trade receivables: Under IFRS 15,
3 Irade receivable may be recognized at an amount that differs from the transaction price e.g. when the transaction price is variable. Conversely,
FRS5 9 requires that companies initially measure trade receivables withoul a significant financing component at the transaction price. The (ASB has
amended IFRS 9 to require companias to inlially measure a trade receivable without a significant financing component at the amount delermined by
applying IFRS 15; and

- how a lessee accounts for Ihe derecognilion of a lease liability under paragraph 23 of IFRS 9:

When lease lizbililies are derecogmized under IFRS 9, the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration paid is recognized in profit
of loss
The amendment on trade receivables may require some companies o change their accounting policy.

The amendment on derecognition of lease liabilities applies only fo lease lizbilities extinguished on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the amendment is first applied.

Temporary exemption from IFRS 17 and IFRS 9

Fursuanl o the requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan SRO 1715 (I) / 2023 daled 21 November 2023 IFRS 17
*Insurance Contracts”, is applicable o Ine companies engaged in insurance / takaful and re-insurance [ re-lakaful business from financial years
commencing on or after 01 January 2026,

Pursuant lo the requiremonts of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan SRO 1715 (I} / 2023 dated 21 November 2023 IFRS 17
‘Insurance Conlracts”, 1s applicablo to the companies engaged in insurance / fakaful and re-insurance / re-takaful business from financial years
eommencing on or after 01 January 2096

o
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SLCP through its S.R 0 506(11/2024 has directed thal the applicabilty period of oplional lemporary exemplion from applying IFRS @ Financial
Instruments as given in para 20A of IFRS 4 Insurance Conlracts is extended for annual perlods beginning before 01 January 2026, subject 1o
lilfilling the same conditions as are proscrnibed by para 200 of IFRS 4

SECP wide leller no. IDMDPROAFRS 17/20211176 daled 15 June 2021 Initiated a four-phase approach lowards implementation of IFRS 17 -
Insurance Contracts The first three phases new sland compleled and Phase 4 parallel run and Implementation has commenced and is currently
under proaress

In Phase 4 SECP requires paraliel run of IFRS 17 for the year ended 31 December 2024 to be submilled to SECP by 30 June 2025 and dry run on
the financeal statement of the first quader of 2025 1o be submitied by 30 November 2025.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

IFRS @ Financial Instruments’ has become applicable, however as an insurance Society, the management has opled temporary exemption from the
application of IFRS 9 as allowed by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) for entities whose aclivilies are predominantly connected with
insurance Additonal disclosures. as required by the 1ASB, for being eligible to apply the temporary exemplion from the application of IFRS @ are
given below

The 1ables below set out the Far values as al the end of reporting period and the amount of change in the fair value during thal period for the
foliowing two groups of financial asscls separately:

a) Financial assets with contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are solely payments of principal and interest
{SPPI) on the principal amount oulstanding, excluding any financial assel that meels the definition of held for trading in IFRS 8, or that is
managed and whose performance is evalualed on a fair value basis.

b) All gther financial assets

As at December 31, 2024
Other financial assets Financial assets that will pass the SPPI Test
Changein Cost less Change in
Fair Value | unrealized gain | Carrying value impairment unrealized gain
during the year during the year
Financial Assets
Cash and bank balances® - 7,612,026 - 5
Investment in equity securiies 131,398,570 45449614 : = -
Investment in debl secunties
Hald lo maturity” = - 2511450 - -
Term deposils - - 1,500,000 - -
Insurance / reinsurance receivables - - 863435 5 =
Rainsurance recoveries - = 166,328 " g
Secunty deposits - - 53,400 - -
Sundry receivables® - - 3,744,243 - .
Total 131,398,570 45449,614 16,456,882 -
As al December 31, 2023
Other financial assels Financial assets that will pass the SPPI Test
Change in Costlss Change in
FairValue |unrealized gain | Carrying value | unrealized loss
during the year ip Siment during the year
Financial Assels
Casn and bank balances” - 12,059,298 -
Investment in equity secunlics 85948956 22,007,539 - . -
Investment in debt secuntics
Held to maturity” - - 2,511,450 -
Term deposils - - - -
insurance | fensurance receivables 4 - 1,290,667 .
Rensurance recovenas ] - 166,347 = :
Security deposits - - 59,400 - :
Sundry receivables” - - 3,950,260 - -
Total 85,948,956 22,007,530 20,037,422 P .

* The carrying amounl of these financial assels measured by appiying IFRS 9 are a reasonable approximation of their falr values.
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Material accounting policies information

Ihe matenal accounting pevicy mformation applied in the preparation of these financial stalements are sof oul below These poficies have been
consistently applied to all years prosentod, unless otherwise slated

Insurance conlracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Sociely (the insurer) has accepled signilicant insurance risk from another party (the policyholders)
by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if @ speafied uncertain fulure evenl (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders

Once a contract has boen ciassihied as an insurance contracl, it remains an Insurance conlract for the remainder of ils pericd, even if the insurance
rsk reduces signdicantly dunng this pened, unless all nghls and obligations are exlinguished or expired.

The Socely underwrites non-ife msurance confracls thal can be calegorized inlo fire damage, marine, molor and miscellanecus conlracts.
Contracts may be concluded for a fixed term of one year, for less than one year and in some cases for more than one year. However, most of the
coniracts are for twelve months duration

Fire insurance contracts manly compensate the customers for damage suffered to their property.

Maring insurance provides coverage aganst loss and damage to goods in transit by any means of conveyance, physical loss or damage to ships
and habiities to third parties, passengers and cargo.

Matar insurance covers physical loss or damage to the vehicle and liabilities lo third parties as provided under the requirements of the Motor Vehicle
Ordinance, 1855,

All other insurances are included under miscollaneous insurance cover.

Property and equipment

Owned and tangible

Initial recognition and measurement

Propeny and equipment except freehold land and building are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses if

a1y Building is stated at the révalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is stated at
revalued amount less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cest in relation to propedy and equipment comprises acquisition and other directly alfributable costs. The cost of self constructed assels includes
tne cost of matenals, direct labor and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets lo a working condition for their use as intended by
1ne management. The cost of replacing a part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the camrying amount of the item if it is probable
that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will fiow to the Society and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognized.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount of recognized as a separale assel, as appropriate, only when it is prebable that future
peanomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other normal repair and
maintenance costs and on-going operational expenditure are charged 1o income during the period in which these are incurred.

Freehold land and buildings on frechold land are revalued every three to five years. In the fast year, the Sociely had again undergone fresh
revaluation exercise for is land and building Any accumulated depreciation al the date of revaluation is eliminaled against the gross carrying
amount of the assel, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of that assel. Additions, subsequent to revaluation, are staled af cost
less accumulaled deprecialion and any identified impairment loss

Depreciation

Depreciation on operating fixed assels is charged to slatement of profit o loss by applying reducing balance method so as 1o write off the
depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Nole 4 of these financial statements. Depreciation is charged
on he basis of period of use | & depreciation on additions is charged from the day when the asset is available for use and ends on the day when the
asset is disposed off

Residual value and the useful Ife of assets are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted if expectations differ significantly from previous
estimates and impact on depreciation is significant. Residual values are determined by the management as the amount it expects it would receive
currently for an tlem of property and equipment if it was already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life based on Ihe
prevailing market prices of similar assels already at the end of their useful lives.

Useful lives are determined by the management based on Ihe expected usage of assets, physical wear and tear, lechnical and commercial
cbsolescence, legal and similar kmits on the use of the assets and other similar factors.

Impairment

Where carrying amounts exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are wrillen down fo their recoverable amounts and the impairment loss
18 recognized in Ihe statement of profil or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value loss cost to sell and value in use. Where

an impairment loss s recogmized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in fulure years to allocale the assel's revised carmying amount over ils
estimated useful life

o
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De-recognition

An item of property and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when na fulure economic benefils are expecled from its use. Disposal of an
assel s recognized when significant nsk and rewards, incidental lo Ihe ownership of an asset, have been Iransferred to the buyer. The gan or loss
on disposal or retirement of propery and equipment is represented by Ihe difference between Lhe sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
property and equipment and is recogmzed as an income or expense in the year of disposal In statemenl of profil or loss. In case of sale or retirement
of arevalued property. the attnbulable revaluation surplus remaining in the surplus on revaluation is iransferred directly lo retained eamings.

Intangible assets

intangible asscts are recognized at cost, which comprise purchase price, non-refundable purchase laxes and other directly attibutable expenditures
refatng 1o their implementation and custormization: After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried al cos! less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impaiment losses, if any Inlangible assels are amortized from the day, when Ihese are available for use, using the siraighl-ine
method. whereby the cost of the intangible asset is amortized over ils useful Ife over which the economic benefits are expecled fo flow to the
socely. The uselul Ife and amonizabion method 1s reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date:

Investment property
investment property 15 land or buitding or both held either to eam rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in ordinary
course of business, use in production or supply of goods or services as for administrative purpose.

The Socety's investment property comprises of land and building which is carmied 2t fair value less identified accumulated impairment loss, if any.

An nvestment property is initially recognized at cost which is the fair value of (he consideration paid. Subsequent 1o inifial recognition, investment
property whose fair value can be measured reliably without undue cost or effort on an ongoing basis is measured at fair value, al each reporling
gzte. The changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any other investment property (whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably without undue cost or effort) is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss.

The far value of investment propery after inilial recognition [ transfer is delermined at he end of each year using cument markel prices for
comparable real estate, adjusted for any differences in nalure, location and condition. The fair value of investment property is determined by an
indepandent and professional valuer on the basis of professional assessment of the markel values as disclosed in Note 5.1 of these financial
statemenis.

In case an owner occupied property is Iransferred from operating fixed assels after revaluation to investmenl property, the revaleed amount will be
the far value of such investmen! property on the dale of transfer. However, the revaluation surplus arising on revaluation of such invesiment
orapenty will be credited to "Revaluation reserve”’ and trealed as mentioned in Nole - 3.27 of these financial stalements.

An investment property is derecognized on disposal or when ils nature of subslance is changed i.e. it becomes owner occupied property and
transterred to operating fixed assets or when no fulure economic benefits are expected from ifs sale. The gain or loss on disposal or refirement of
invesiment property represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and its camying amount is recognized as an income or expense in the
statement of profit or loss

Investments

All investments are initially recognized al cost, being the fair value of the consideration given (including transaction cosls). The classification of
nvestments depends on the purpose for which the financial assels were acquired. All purchase and sale of investments thal require delivery within
ihe required time frame established by reguiations or markel convention are accounted for at the trade date, Trade date is the date when the
Company commits to purchase or sell the investments. Subsequently the investments are classified as follows. The Society has not classified any
inwestments al "fair vialue through profit or loss” as at the reporing dale.

- In debt securities

Held-to-maturity

These are inviestmenls with fixed or delerminable payments and fixed maturity that the Society has both intent and ability to hold to maturity.
Subsequent o nitial recognition, these investments are measured at amortized cost less any accumulated impairment losses, taking into account
any discount and premium on acquisition, using the effective rate of inlerest method.

These investments are reviewed lor impairment al each reporting date and any losses arising from impairment in values are charged to the profit or
loss

3.5.2 - In equity securities

Available-for-sale

Invesiments which are nol eligible o be classified as “fair value through profit or loss® or *held to maturity” are classified as "available-for-sale’,
These investments are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response to the need for liquidity, changes in interest
rates, equity prices or exchange rates and are classified as available-for-sale.

Quoled avalabledor-sale investments are remeasured al fair value subsequent lo inifial recognition, Gains or losses on remeasurement of these
invesiments are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. For investments in quoled markelable securities, other than Term Deposit
Receipls, fair / markel value is determined by reference to Stock Exchange quoted market price at the close of business atl each reporling dale.
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ihe value of unquoted avalable for sale mvesiments has been induded on the basls of breakup valuo as por the latest avardablo financial
stiements of the investoe companies These ane reviewed lor impairment s each repoting date and any losses anising lrom imparment in vahies
aro charged 1o he statement of profil or loss

On the disposal of these investments. the accumulated balance of fair value reserva Is recycled lo retained earnings in the statement of changes in
cquity The fair value reserves will never bo reclassified la the stalemenl of prafil of luss

36 Receivables and payables related lo insurance conlracls

Hecewvables and payables related 1o insurance conlracts are recognized when due al cost which Is [he fair value of the consideration given less
prevision for impairment, iFany. Il there is objeclive evidence thal the Insurance recelvable is impalred, as a resull of one or more events that
occurred after the mikal recognition, the Socely reduces the camying amounl ol the Insurance rocelvables accordingly and recognizes thal
impairment loss in the statement of proll or loss

Provision for impairment in premum receivables is estimaled on a systematic basis afler analyzing the receivables as per their aging.

3.7 Advances and other receivables

These are stated al cost less an allowance for doublful receivables. If there is an objeclive evidence thal the amount of overdue receivables will not
be recovered in the noar fulure based on management assessment of the amounls receivable after laking info account the ageing analysis, pasl
trend of the parties, credit history and imils, econemic condilions hal may affect the financial ability of the party lo honour its financial obligations
towards the saciety, volume of ransaclions carried out wilh the paty concemed elc., the managemenl accounts for an appropriate allowance for
doubtful receivables. Recesvables thal are considered bad are immediately written off in the statement of profit or loss.

3.8 Insurance Contracts

Insurance contracts are those conlracls where the Company (the insurer) has accepled significant insurance risk from another party (the policy
holders) by agreeing lo compensale the policy halders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policy hoiders.
Insurance conltracts are classified into following main categories:

Fire and property damage

Manne, aviation and transposd

Motor

Other classes

Once a conlract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remalns an insurance contract for the remainder of its period, even if the insurance
risk reduces significanily during this period, unless all rights and liabililies are extinguished or expired

3.9 Premium deficiency reserve
The Society is required, as per Insurance Rules. 2017 and IFRS-4, to mainiain a provision in respect of premium deficiency for Ihe class of business
where the uneamed premium reserve is nol adequale to meel the expected fulure liability, after reinsurance, from claims and other expenses,
including reinsurance expense, commissions and other underwriling expenses, expecled lo be incurred after the reporting date. The charge for
premium deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense in the statement of profit of loss.
For this purpose, loss ratios for each class are estimated based on historical clzim development. Judgment is used in assessing the extent to which
6 pasl trends may not apply in future or the effects of ene-off claims. If these ralios are adverse, premium deficiency is determined.

3.10 Claims

insurance claims include all claims incurred during the year, whether reported or not, related intemal and extemal claims handling costs that are
direclly refated o the processing and seltlement of claims, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

The Sociely recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred up to the reporting date which is measured at undiscounted value of the expected
future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time of the incident giving rise to the claim except otherwise expressly indicated in
an insurance contract.

Thie liability for claims include amounts, relating to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred bul not reported (IBNR), expecled claims and selllement
costs. Provision for iability in respect of unpaid reported claims is made on the basis of individual case eslimates.

SECP, thepugh its circular 9 of 2016 dated March 9, 2016, issued "Guidelines for estimation of incurred but not reporied (IBNR) claims reserve 2016*
for non life insurance companies, with Ihe requirement thal all provisions of these guidetines be complied with, effective from July 1, 2016. The
Guidelines require thal this provision be estimated for each class of business, using the prescribed "Chain Ladder Method® or an alternate method
a5 allowed under the provisions of the Guidelines.

An actuanal valuation / estmalion as at December 31, 2018 has been carried out by an independent firm of acluaries for determination of IBMR for
cach class of business. The Sociely's appointed actuaries represent that the Society has a low counl of claims in all lines of business, as a result of
which there is insufficient data 1o develop Inangles necessary for reserve estimation pursuant to the "Chain Ladder Method®. Accordingly, an
allernalive method has been adopled by the actuaries whereby IBNR reservies aro esfimaled al 5% of earned premiums.
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Deferred commission expense

Commission expenses incurmed in oblaining and recording policies is deferred and recognized in the statement of profit or loss as an expense in
accordance with the pattern of recogmition of premium

Reinsurance Contracls

Insurance contracts enlered into by the Society with reinsurers for compensalion of losses suffered on insurance contracts issued are reinsurance
contracts These rensurance cantracts include bolh facultalive and Irealy armangement conlracts and are classified in same cateqories of insurance
contracts for the purpase of these financial slatements The Sociely recognizes the enbilled benefits under the contract as various reinsurance
assels. Qutward resnsurance premiums are accounled for in the same period as the relaled premiums for the direct or accepted reinsurance
business being reinsured.

Reinsurance liabilties represent balances due o reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimaled in a manner consistent with the related
re:nsurance contract. Reinsurance assels represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amount recoverable from reinsurers are estimated
in @ manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or seltled claims associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance
with the related reinsurance conlract

Remnsurance assels are nol offsel againsl relaled insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from reinsurance conlract are nol offset 2gains!
expenses or income from related insurance assels.

The deferred portion of reinsurance premium ceded is recognized as a prepayment which is calculated by using 1/24th method a3 prescribed by the
Insurance Rules, 2017,

The Sociely assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on reporting date. If there is an objective evidence that the reinsurance assel is
impaired, the Society reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset (o ifs recoverable amount and recognizes that impairment loss in the
statement of profil or loss,

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims

Claims recoveries recoverable from Ihe reinsurer are recognized as receivable at the same time as the claims which give rise to the right of recovery
are recognized as a liability and are measured at the amount expected I be received.

Taxation - Levy, Income Tax and Sales tax

Income lax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that relates to items
recognized directly in equity or olher comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other comprehensive income.

Levy

In accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, computation of tumover tax and final tax is nol based on taxable income. Therefore, as per
IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes issued by the ICAP, these fall within the scope of IFRIC 21 / 1AS 37
and accordingly have been classified as levy in these financial statements, excepl for laxes on dividends on the entity's investments in subsidiaries
and associales which are specifically within the scope of IAS 12 and hence these conlinue to be categorized as current income fax.

Current

Current income lax assels and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured 2t the amount expecied to be recovered from or paid lo the
taxation authorities, using the fax rales and tax laws that have been enacted or substanlively enacted by the end of the reporting date.
The charge for current tax 1s higher of corporale tax (higher of tax based on taxable income and minimum tax) and alternative corporate tax less any
tax rebale / tax credit as applicable to the Sociely under the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. However, in case of loss for the year,
income fax expense i1s recognized &s minimum lax liability on revenue of the Society in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, Super tax, if applicable, on the Society is calculaled as per applicable lax rates as per Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Frovision of current tax is based on Ihe taxable income for the year defermined in accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The charge for
current tax is calculated using prevailing lax rales or tax rales expected lo apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also
includes adjusiments, where considered necessary, lo provision for tax made in previous years ansing from assessments finalized during the current
year for such years.

Alternative corporate lax is calculated at 17% of accounting profit, after taking into account the required adjustments.

Current tax for current and prior year, to the extent unpaid, is recognized as a liability, If the amount already paid in respect of current and prior
periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognized as an assel. The Society offsets current tax assets and current tax
lizbilities f, and only i, it has & legally enforceable right 1o set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
assel and seltle the liability simultaneously. The management periodically evaluates positions taken in the (ax retums with respect Lo situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject lo interpretalion and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deférred
Delerred lax is recognized using he halance sheel liability method, In respect of lemporary differences arising al the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and ther carrying amounis lor financial reporting purposes

Deferred lax liabililies are generally recognized for all the {axabla lemporary differonces, Deferred lax assets are recognized for all deductible
lemporary differences 1o the exlent thal il is probable (hat the fulure taxable profils will be available against which the deductible lemporary
differences, unused lax losses and lax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assels are reduced 10 the extent that il is no longer probable that the
related tax benefil will be realized

o



The canrying amount of deferred 1ax 1s reviewed al each reporting date and reduced lo the exient thal il is no langer probable that sufficient laxable
profits wil be avalable to allow all or parl of the deferred tax assel lo be recognized. Unrecognized deferred tax assels are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized fo the extent that it has become probable that fulure laxable profils will allow deferred tax asset 1o be recovered

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured 2l the lax rales that are expecled o apply to the periods when the assel is utiized or the liabulity is
settied, based on the 1ax rales (and lax laws) hal have been enacled or substantively enacled at the reporting date. Deferred lax is charged or
credited to other comprehensive income excepl in the case of itlems credited or charged fo equity in which case il is included in equity.

315 Prepayments
Prepayments are recorded as an assel These are amortized as and when due over the period.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carmed m the statement of financial position at cosl. For the purposes of statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents compnse cash in hand, policy stamps in hand and bank balances in current accountls,

3.7 Creditors, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are camied at cost which is the fair value of the consideration lo be paid in future for goads and
services received, whether or nol billed to the Society.

Prowisions are recognized when the Sociely has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past evenls and it is probable that an outflow
of economic resources embodying economic benefits will be required lo sellle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amounl can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporling date and adjusted to reflect the current estimate, If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic
Q reseurces embodying economic benefils will be required to setlle the obligation, the provisions are reversed.

3.18 Staff retirement benefits

The Society operates a contributory providen! fund scheme which covers all efigible i.e. permanent employees. Equal monthly conlributions are
made by both the Saciety and the employees to the provident fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary. The contributions are recognized as employee
benefit expense when lhey are due,

3.19 Dividend and bonus shares

Cash dividend 1o shareholders 15 recogmized as liability in the period in which it is approved. Similarly all other appropriations other than those
required by law including reserve forissue of bonus shares are recognized in the period in which they are approved.

3.20 Revenue recognition

First year individual non-life premiums are recognized once the related policies have been issued and the premiums are received. Renewal

premiums are recognized upon receipt of premiums provided the pelicy is still in force. Single premiums are recognized once the related policies are

issued agans! the receipts of premium. Premiums are recognized when due. A provision for uneamed premiums is recognized as policyholders'

liabiities.

0 Reinsurance commission 1S recognized as revenue in accordance with the pattem of recognition of the reinsurance premium to which it refates.
Commission, if any, under the terms of reinsurance arrangements is recognized when the Company's right o receive the same is established.

o Income from held-to-maturity investmenls is recognized on a fime proportion basis, taking into account the effective yield on investments. The

Q diffesence between the redemplion value and the purchase price of the held-to-maturity investments is amortized and taken to profit or loss over the
term of the invesiment.

o Gans/losses on sale of available-for-sale investmenls are recognized in profil or loss in the year of sale.

o Owidend income is recognized when the Society's right to receive the dividend is esltablished.
o Rentalincome is recognized on accrual basis.

3.21 Management expenses
Undenwriling expenses have been -allocated to various classes of business on a basis deemed equitable by the managemenl. Expenses not
attnbutable o the underwnting business are charged as administrative expenses.

3.22 Zakat
Zakal under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 198015 accounled for in the year of deduction.

3.23 Operating segments
The Society has three primary business segments for reporting purposes, namely; fire, motor vehicles and miscellaneous.

/in operaling seament is 8 component of the Sociely Ihal engages in business aclivilies from which il may earn revenues and incur expenses
including revenues and expenses Ihal relate o Iransactions wilth any of the Soclely's other components. All operating segmenls’ resulls are
reviewed regularly by the Society lo make decisions aboul resources to be allocated lo the segment and assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available.
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3.25

§ 2
1.26.1 Financial assels

Opwsing seaments ate reported i a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker who is
responsible for allenating resources and assessing performance of the operaling segments

The Sociely accounts for segment reporting of operating resulls using Ihe classes of business as specified under (he Insurance Ordinanca, 2000
and the Insurance Rules, 2017,

Assels, habilites and capital expenditures thal are directly altributable to segments have been assigned lo them while the carrying amount of certain
assels used jointly by two or more segments have been allocaled fo segments on a reasonable basis. Those assets and liabilities which cannot be
allocated to a parlicular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities,

Financial instruments

Financial assels and financial habililies within the scope of 145-39 are recognized at the same time when the Society enters into contractual
refationship with olhers and de-recognized when the Society looses control over contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case
of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the
financial assets and financial liabilities is inciuded In other comprehensive income for the year.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset and financial liabilty is offsel and the net amount is reported in the stalement of financial position if the Society has a legally
enforceable right 1o set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to seltle on @ net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is assessed al each reporting date to determine whether there is any objeclive evidence that it is impaired. A financial assel is
considered 1o be impaired if there is objective evidence thal one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
lhat assel

3.26.2 Non financial assets

3.27

3.28

329

The carrying amount of non-financial assets is reviewed at each reporting dale lo determing whether there is any indication of impairment of any
asset or a group of assels. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assel is estimated, The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less cosls to sell. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asse! exceeds its
cstimated recoverable amount.

All impairment losses are recognized in the stalement of profit or loss. Provisions for impairment are reviewed at each reporting date and are
adjusted to reflect the current best estimales. Changes in the provisions are recognized as income or expense,

Revaluation reserve

Surplus ansing on revaluation of properly and equipment, compuled by eliminating the accumulated depreciation as at the dale of revaluation, is
credited lo the "Revaluation Reserve” account being presented and recognized in the Statemenl of Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the
Statement of Changes in Equily as a capilal reserve. On every revaluation, the increase in fair value of underlying asset is credited to other
comprehensive income to the extnt that it firsl reverses the previously recognized revaluation decrease in he statement of profit or loss. A
decrease in fair value of undedying asset is charged lo the statement of profit or loss o the extent thal it first reverses the previously recognized
revaluation increase in the statement of comprehensive income. Following amounts are transferred from *Revaluation Reserve® lo "Unappropriated
profit through Statement of Changes in Equity to record reafization of surplus:

o 21 amount equal lo incremental depreciation on revaluation surplus of property and equipment for the year, if any; or
o  an amount equal lo carying amount of revaluation surplus of property and equipment, if any, on its disposal;

Share Capital and Reserves

Share capilal represents the face value of shares thal have been issued Any transaclion cosls associaled wilth the issuance of shares are deducted
from share capital, ned of any relaled income tax benefits. Relained earnings Include all current and prior period profits.

Contingencies and commitments

These are not accounted for in the financial stalements unless these are actual liabilities and are only disclosed when:

a) there is a possible obligation that anses lrom past events and whose exislence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurmence
of one or more uncerain lulure events nol wholly within the conirol of the Sociely, or

] there is present obligation that arises lrom past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wil
be required to selile the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sulficient reliabiiity.
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ihe assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the oulcome of the future events cannat be
prodicted with sertanty The Socety, based on the avadabllity of the lates! Information, estimates the value of conlingent assets and liabilities which
may affer on Ine oceurrence / non eccurrence of Ihe uncertain fulure events nol wholly within the control of the Sociely.

The Society has disclosed significant contingent liabilities for the pending liligations and claims against the Society based on its judgment and the
advice of the legal adwisors for the estimated financial outcome. The actual outcome of these lligations and claims can have an effect on the
camying amounts of the iatslies recognized al the dale of stalement of financial position, However, based on the best judgment of the Society and
its logal advisors, the Iikely cutceme of these ligations and claims is remole and there is no need lo recognize any liability at the reporting date.

Earning per share

The Socrety presents basic and diuted eamings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Society by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, Diluted EPS is
delermined by adjusting the profit o loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares oulstanding for
the efiects of all dilutve potential ordinary shares.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other events, other than changes resulting from transactions with
shareholders in their capacity as shareholders. Tolal comprehensive income comprises all companents of profil or loss and other comprehensive
income. Other comprehensive income comprises ilems of income and expense, including reclassification adjustments, that are not recognized in
profit or loss as required of permitted by approved accounting standards,

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are caricd oul al arm's length prices, determined in accordance with pricing methods as approved by the Beard of

Drrectors, except in rarely exireme circumstances, subject lo the approval of the Board, where it is in the interest of the Society to do so. Parties ane
said 1o be related if they 2re able io influence (he operating and financial decisions of the Scciety.
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44 Hadtho revaluation of these assets nol boen ntade, tho carrying valuo of theso assols as al roporting dale would have bean as under

2024 2023
Rupeos Rupeas
Frechold land 2,345,300 2,345,300
Buitding on frechold land 12430 76,242
2,417,730 2421542
45  Forced salo and assessed values of these ilems of property and equipmant as al the dale of rovaluation, 1.6, December 31, 2023, were as under:
Forced sale value AATSINERN
value
Rupees Rupees
F rechold land 1,922,062,500 2,261,250,000
Bulding on frechold land 74,188,064 87,280,075

Considerations for the determination of forced sale value

Tha foliowing factors may cause an impacl mdivdually on the analomy of the property, delermanation of ifs forced sates value and would influence on the value of assel

areas lollows

1. Economic conditsans of the arca and tha country
2. Status of the properly valhin ils own seclor

3. Markelabilty of its location

4 Conditon of s assels and ther currenl status
5. The age of building and ils proximily

5 Investment property

2024 2023
Note Land | Building , Total Land I Buiing I Total
Rupees  FRupees  Rupees Rupees Rugees Rupees
Balance as at January 01, 51 83,400,000 4,507,988 87,907 988 70,890,000 4,362,242 75,252,292
Fair value gain il 8,340,000 610,612 8950692 42510,000 145,696 12,655,656
Balance as at December 31 91,740,000 5,118,600 86,858,600 83.400.000 4,507,988 B7.807.988

51 This represents land & building in Rawalpindi and building in Sargodha representing 1390 and 705.375 sqlts respectively. Lates! fair value of the investmenl property
was delermined by independen! valuer Messrs, Muhammad Siddigue Associales (Private) Limited as on December 31, 2024, having recognilion on the panel of PBA
The valuer used markel comparable approach fo artive al the fair value. The key observable input under this approach are the price per square feet from current year
sales of comparable properbes in the area (focation and size). The basis used Tor revaluation of invesimenl property were the same as disclosed in Nole 4.1 of these

finantial statements for building on frechofd land. As at the reporting date, there was a fair value gain of Rs. 8.951 million {2023: Rs. 12,656 million).

Tha forced sale value of the invesiment properly is assessed al Rs: 82.330 million (2023: Rs. 74.722 million) as at tha reporing dale. The factors having impact on the

52
{oeced sales value and affect the value of the properly are same as disclosed in Nole 4.5 above.
& Investments 2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Equity sccuntics 6.1 131,398,570 85,948 956
Term doposids 6.2 4,011,450 2511450
135,410,020 88,460,406
6.1 Equity securities
6.1.1 Available for sale - At fair value through OCI
' Number of shares Face value per share Company Name Cost Surplus Fair value
Listed equitios
239999 10 Pakisian Re-insurance Company Limilod 131620 36,629,686 36,761,306
235,116 10 Feroresons Laboralones Limited 181,030 78.866.331 79,047,361
312,650 115,496,017 115,808,667

wer!




6.1.2

Number of shares Face value per share Company Name Cost Surplus Fair value
Unlisted equities
44,428 100 Punjab Provingial Cooperative Bank Limiled 4,442 600 9,270,153 13,712,753
100 100 National Cooperative Supply Corporation Limiled 10,000 1,867,150 1,877,150
4,452,600 11,137,303 15,589,903
Total as at December 31, 2024 a765250 126633320 131,398,570
Number of shares Face value per share Company Name Cost Surplus Fair value
Listed Equibes
2,339,994 10 Pakistan Re-insurance Company Limited 131,620 17,862,934 17,994,554
235716 10 Ferozesons Laboratories Limited 181,030 51,827,349 52,008,379
312,650 69,690,283 70,002,933
Linkist i
44 426 100 Punjab Provincial Cooperative Bank Limited 4 442,600 9,210,603 13,653,203
100 100 National Cooperative Supply Corporation Limiled 10.000 2,282,820 2,292,820
4 452,600 11493423 15,946,023
Tolal a5 al December 31, 2023 4,765,250 81,183,706 85,948,956
2024 2023
Movement in this head of accounts is as follows: Note Rupees Rupees
Balance as al January 01, 85,948,956 63,041,417
Change in fair value
Listed equities 45,805,734 21,527 838
Unlisted equites (356,120) 479,701
1.3 45,449,614 22,007,539
Balance as at December 31, 131,398,570 85,948 956




6.1.3

6.2
6.2.1

6211
6212

71

714
112

113

1134

1.2

The breakup value of mvesiment m unlisted equly instruments of Punjab Provinclal Cooperalive Bank Limited (PPCBL) and National Cooperatve Supply
Corporation Limited (NCSCL) is based on thew respective audited financial slatements for the year ended June 30, 2024.

2024 piivel

Note Rupees Rupess
Term deposits - At amortized cost B.2.1 4,011,450 2511450
Held to maturity
State Bank of Pakisian
- Cash deposil 6.2.1.1 2,500,600 2,500,600
- Defense saving certificates 6.2.1.1 10,850 10,850
Term deposits 6.212 1,500,000

4,011,450 251,450

These deposits are held as stalutory deposits uls 29 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 for an indefinite period, These deposils do not bear any profit

This deposit is placed with the Punjab Provincial Cooperative Bank Limited (PPCBL) for a term of three years, maluring on February 18, 2027, with an option for
renewal upon maturily 1t cames profil rale ranging from 20.60% to 20.70% per annum (2023: Nil).

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Sundry recefvables
Considered good
Rent receivable - secured T4 2,767,808 2,865,984
Receivable from branches - unsecured 647,984 855,276
Advance income lax 302,804 302,804
Advance to staff against salanes - secured 72 60,500 229,000
Accrued profil on ferm deposit 267,951 -
4,047,047 4,253,064
Rent receivable®
Considered good 2,767,808 2,865,984
Considered doubtful 566,916 608,583
112 3,334,724 3474 567
Less: Prowision for doubtful receivables 713 {566,916) (608,583)

2,767,808 2,855,964

*This 15 partially secured against the depasits received from the tenants (Refer Note 14)

This includes Rs. 3.021 million as gross rent receivable from a major tenant of the Society namely; Mr. Shahid Rasheed, owner of Cookers Restaurant. This
batance is long outstanding as the tenant is nol honouring its commitment towards the Society. As a consequence, the Society had initiated legal proceedings
against the aforenamed tenant for the recovery of its outstanding rent from him. Pursuant to the Order dated June 01, 2024, passed by the Learned Rent Tribunal,
Lahore, the decision was made in favor of the Sociely. The court adjudicated that rent amears amounting ta Rs. 3.021 million are recoverable for the period from
April 2019 to July 2022 from Mr. Shahid Rasheed,

The Court has ordered a two-stage execution process:
1 Ewiction of the tenants and restoration of vacant possession of the Society's premises,
2 Recovery of the adjudicated arrears through legal enforcement mechanisms.

A Court-appointed Bailiff has visied the premises and submitted his report. The execution process is cuently underway under Honourable Courts supenvision
Bzsed on the legal sialus and progress of recovery proceedings, management considers the recovery of the said amount to be virlually certain. Accordingly, no
further provision has been made in these financial statements against the outstanding balance of rent due from the said party as the management expects ful
realization of its overdue amount in due course of time:

2024 2023
Movement of the provision is as under: Note Rupees Rupees
Balance as al January 01, 7.1.341 608,583 608,583
Amounts written off during the year 7134 (41,667) -
Balance as al December 31, 566,916 608,583

This represents the allowance agains! outstanding balance of renl receivable from Shahid Rasheed made by the management in past as per its judgment in view of
default by the said tenant in making payments of oulstanding rent owed by it to the Society. Pursuanl to the aforementioned Courts Order (Mote 7.1.2), the Courl
has confirmed the Society's claim for rent receivabla from the said tenant in the sum of Rs. 3.021 million as against the amount of rent due appearing in the
Sociaty's books of account in the sum of Rs. 3.083 million. Therefore, the exira amount of rent receivable amounling lo Rs. 41,667 has been written off dunng the
year

These are secured against stalf retirement benefils - provident fund,

ol
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10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

1"

1.1

2024 2023
Rupess Rupees
Security deposits
Rented premises 50,000 50.000
Utilikes 9,400 9400
59,400 59,400
Cash and bank balances
Cash with banks in current accounts 7,107,317 11,674 452
Cash in Hand - Policy stamp and Petly Cash 504,709 384 846
7,612,026 12,059,298
Ordinary share capital
Authorized share capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
Mo. of shares Rupees Rupees
50,003,240 50,003,240 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 500,032,400 500,032,400
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
No. of shares Rupees Rupees
49,730,983 49,730,983 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up in cash 497,309,830 497,309,830
272,257 272,257 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as bonus 2,722,570 2,722,570
shares
50,003,240 50,003,240 500,032,400 500,032,400
The share capilal of the Society is held by the following cooperative banks and olhers:
2024 2023
Name of Shareholder Total number of| Percentage of | Total numberof | Percentage of
shares shares shares shares
The Punjab Provincial Cooperative Bank Limited 36,318,949 73% 36,318,949 73%
The Lahore Central Cooperative Store 3,020,198 6% 3,020,198 6%
The Frontier Cooperative Bank Limited 2,984,458 6% 2,984,458 6%
Others 7,679,635 15% 1,679,635 15%
50,003,240 100% 50,003,240 100%

As per the bye-laws of the Society, no member of any Society shall have more than one vole in its affairs, provided that in the ¢ase of an equity

of votes the chairman shall have a casting vote.

Reserves Note
Capilal reserves 1.4
General reserves 11.2
Fair value reserves 11.3
Revaluation reserve 1.4

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
5,807,404 4,976,062
5,338,148 5,338,148
89,962,523 57,693,297
1,818,525,681 1,821,621,417
1,919,633,756 1,889,628,924

This represents the reserve crealed in accordance with the provisions of the bye-laws of the Seciely and will be utilized in a manner specified
therein. This reserve is not available for distribution as a dividend lo the members. During the year, the Board of Direclors has approved transfer
of profit lo reserve fund @ 25% (2023 25%) in accordance with the bye-laws. The movement in this head of account is as follows:

\U-“'J



Balance as at January 01,

Add Transfer to reserve fund @ 25% of profit after taxation

Balance as at December 31,

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
4,976,062 3,500,347
831,342 1475715
5,807,404 4,976,062

1.2 Thus reserve is not available for distnbution as dividend to the shareholders of the Society and will be utilized in a manner as specified in the bye-

11.3 Fair value reserve

laws of the Society,

Balance as at January 01,
Add Unrealized gain on re-measurement of investments
Less: Deferred tax liability atinbutable to fair value gain

Balance as at December 31,

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
57,693,297 42,067,944
6.1.2 45,449,614 22,007,539
1341 (13,180,388) (6,382,186)
32,269,226 15,625,353
1131 89,962,523 57,693,297

3.1 This reserve is not available for distribution as dividend to the shareholders of the Society and will be reclassified to unappropriated profit on the
sale of available for sale investments in the "Statement of Changes in Equity”.

11.4 Revaluation reserve

Balance as at January 01,

Add: Surplus arose on fresh revaluation
Less: Deferred tax liability on revaluation surplus

Less: Incremental depreciation attributed to revaluation surplus
Add: Deferred tax attributable to incremental depreciation

Balance as at December 31,

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
1,821,621,417 1,701,861,587
. 128,931,796
(6,787,971)
(4,360,192) (3,357,739)
1,264,456 973,744
141 1,818,525,681 1,821,621 417

11.41 The surplus on revaluation of property and equipment is not available for distribution to shareholders of the Society in accordance with section

o

241 of the Companies Act, 2017,

2024 2023
12 Unearned reinsurance commission Rupees Rupees
Commission paid or payable 4,347,139 4,658,021
Deferred commission expense - opening 2,390,702 2,262,046
Deferred commission expense - closing 2,214,554 2,390,702
Net commission 4,523,287 4,529,365
Less:
Commission received or receivable 1,191,174 1,148,630
Uneamed commission - opening 896,197 725,845
Uneamned commission - closing 918,717 896,197
Commission from reinsurers 1,168,654 978,278
3,354,633 3,551,087
Commission Unearned commission I —
Particulars received or Opening Closin ; g
oahabia g reinsurers reinsurers
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Fire and properly damage 277,102 170,530 219,877 227,155 127,083
Live stock and others 914,072 725,667 698,840 940,899 851,195
1,191,174 896,197 818,717 1,168,654 978,278

el
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2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Deferred taxation 13.1 60,910,754 48,989,595
Movement wise breakup of deferred tax balances is as follows:
Recognized in :
Recognized in Recognized in
it Balance as at other Balance as at
Description January 01, 2024 profit nrzlru (Note comprehensive nhm!uri:nlo:h December 31, 2024
) income (Note 11.3) o
Deferred tax liabilities in respect of taxable
temporary differences:
Property and equipment 25,445,320 (1,259,229) - 24,187,091
Available for sale investments 23,543,215 13,180,388 36,723,663
48,989,595 (1,259,229) 13,180,388 60,910,754
Recognized in
Balance as at | Teecognizedin other Recognized in Balance as at
Description January 01 2023| Profitorloss | comprehensive statement of December 31,
e {Note 24) income (Note | changes in equity 2023
11.3)
Deferred tax liabilities in respect of taxable
temporary differences:
Property and equipment 19,713,574 (1,055,225) 6,787,971 - 25,446,320
Available for sale invesimenis 17,105,827 55,262 6,382,186 - 23,543,215
36,819,401 {999,963) 13,170,157 - 48,989 595

The deferred tax assels and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net settlement. Therefore,

they have been offsel in the staterent of financial position.

The deferred tax assets on unused business tax losses amounting to Rs. 2.742 million and minimum tax paid in the sum of Rs. 1.160 million
have not been recognized in these financial statements as the certainty of the taxable profits / taxable differences in the foreseeable future is not

assured against which these assels would be reversed.

2024 2023

Other creditors and accruals Note Rupees Rupees
Duties and laxes payable 657,521 1,118,223
Securities against rented premises 1,280,000 1,380,000
Accrued expenses 1,436,647 1,085,705
Leave encashment payable 1,669,448 1,526,034
Other payables 141 885,584 1,014,879

5,929,200 5,124 841

These include Rs. 44,184 (2023: Rs. 55,402) on account of employees’ provident fund payable.

Contingencies and commitments

The Cooperalive Insurance Sociely of Pakistan Limited (“the Sociely”) Is the regislered owner in possession of property located at 23-The Mall,
Lahore, measuring 8 Kanals, 7 Marlas, and 112.5 Sq. Ft., acquired through regislered sale deed dated 24-03-1964 and subsequent transfer order
daled 24-12-1964 issued by the Settlement Department, Punjab.

In 1972, the Governmenl of Pakistan issued a letler appoinling a trustee and sub-trustee with directions to take over the said property. Aggrieved

by this action, the Society filed Writ Pelition No. 819/1972, which was decided in its favor by the Lahore High Court on 03-11-1992, declaring the
1972 directive without lawful aulhority and of no legal effect, and remanding the matter to the Insurance Appellate Tribunal.

e
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15.3

15.4

15.5

15.6

15.7

15.8

The Trbunal dismissed the matter on 07-10-1997 citing lack of jurisdiction. Subsequently, the Sociely instiluted a civil suit for possession, mesne
profits, accounts, and injunction which was decreed on 15-01-1999. Though the decree was inilially set aside ex parte on 07-04-1999,
subsequent itigation reaffirmed the Sociely's claim. However, in 2018, after a lapse of 26 years, the State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan
(SLIC) filed an application under section 12(2) of the Code of Civil Procedure (CPC), 1908 alleging fraud in oblaining the 1992 judgment. This
applicaton was allowed by the Lahore High Court vide its Order dated 17-04-2025.

The Sociely, being aggrieved by the said order, has filed a pelition before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan on 27-05-2025 challenging
therein the maintainability and legality of the impugned order dated 17-04-2025 and is also seeking suspension of the same.

At present, the Society continues to maintain legal ownership and possession of the property. The managemenl, based on legal counsel's
opinion and the ments of the case, is confident of a favorable oulcome in the instant appeal duly filed before the Hon'ble Supreme Court.
Accordingly, no adustment in respect of this matter has been made in these financial stalements as the properly remains in possession of the
Society, and the proceedings are sub judice.

A case was filed on 07-02-2020 before the Honorable Civil Judge against the Saciety and Punjab Provincial Cooperative Bank Limited wherein
the policyholder, Cooperative Thrift and Credit Society, wanted to recover its research record lost in Punjab Provincial Cooperative Bank Limited.
As of the latest hearing on 25-09-2024, the record was presented, and the opposing party completed its arguments. The Sociely is now preparing
Io present its arguments with the next hearing scheduled for 16-06-2025. The Society is conlesting the case before the concerned Honorable

Court on professional grounds and is hopeful for a favorable outcome in the instant case. However, there is no financial impact involved in this
malter

For the tax year 2012, the tax department has crealed a tax demand in the sum of Rs. 1.134 million by passing an order dated 31-05-2014 after
conducting the lax audit of the Society mainly on the issue of inadmissibility and disallowance of certain expenses and also did not give credit of
the taxes paid at the time of filing of income tax retum under section 137 of the Income Tax Crdinance, 2001 amounting Rs. 302 802 (Refer Note
7). The Department forcefully recavered the entire demand from the bank accounts of the Society. The Society filed an appeal before the
Commissioner Infand Revenue (CIR- Appeals) who vide order dated 30-06-2014 annulled the entire demand. Thereafter, the Additional
Commissioner Inland Revenue (ADIR) vide order dated 26-06-2015, without affording an opportunity of being heard recreated the demand of Rs.
1.134 million. The Society again filed appeal before CIR-Appeals who vide order dated 21-02-2017 confirmed the demand. Being aggrieved from
the order, the Society filed a second appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) who vide order dated 09-09-2023 remanded
back the entire order for fresh assessment. The lax department has nol yet initiated fresh proceedings. The management of the society and ils
tax advisor are of the firm view that the oulcome of the inslant malter will be decided in their favour,

For the tax year 2016, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has passed an order on 13-12-2022 and crealed a demand amounting
to Rs 1,618,210. Being aggrieved, the Society has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR-Appeals) against the impugned
order who has confirmed some of the additions amounting to Rs. 1.619 million vide its order dated 13-12-2022 and remanded the case back to
DCIR for additions amounting to Rs. 1.252 million under relevant heads. Against this order, the Society has filed a second appeal before the
Honourable Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which is pending adjudication at the terminal date. The Society and its tax advisor are of

1 the firm belief that there is likelihood of favourable outcome in the instant appeal and the case will be decided in their favour.

Afghan Ghee Industries (Pvt.) Ltd has filed a time-barred insurance claim in the sum of Rs. 28 million against the Sociely before the Insurance
Tribunal, Peshawar. The malter is currently stayed by the Peshawar High Court, with the next hearing scheduled for 29-06-2025. The Society is
contesting the aleged claim on various legal grounds including limitation of time, jurisdiction, and procedural deficiencies. Based on the opinion of
legal counsel and the relevant provisions of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the management believes that the likelihood of an adverse oulcome
is remote. Accordingly, no provision in this regard has been made in these financial statements.

State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan has instituted legal proceedings against the Society and its various tenants for the recovery of rental
income by claiming its illegal ownership of the Society’s building as already disclosed in Note 15.1 above. The Society along with its tenants are
professionally contesting this case by challenging the legal grounds of the claimant. Accordingly, the Society and its legal counsel are of the firm
belief thal the outcome of the case will be decided in their favour as the claim lodged by the claimant is illegal and infructuous.

The Society has also filed a law suil against some of the tenants in the civil courl for paying renlal under fraudulent sub-lease arrangements to
the illegal occupants of the Sociely's building including Mr. Shahid Rashid agains! whom the Society had already flled legal proceedings for the
recovery of old outstanding balance of rent due and againsl whom the Leamed Renl Tribunal, Lahore passed a decree for eviction of the
Society's premises and recovery of the adjudicated arrears as disclosed in Note 7.1.2 of these financial statements. The Sociely and its legal
advisor are of the firm view that the matler in (he instanl case will be decided in their favour,

There are no known commilments of the Sociely as al December 31, 2024 (2023 Nil).

o



2024 2023

16 Netinsurance premium Note Rupees Rupees
Wnitten gross premium 30,581,213 32934045
Uneamned premium reserve - opening 16,123,883 15,065,937
Unearned premium reserve - closing 14,827 652 16,123 833
Premwm eamed 3877444 31,876,059
Less:

Reinsurance premium ceded 7,457,086 7,215,615
Prepaid reinsurance premium - opening 4452173 3849443
Prepa:d reinsurance premium - closing 4,660,606 4,452,173
Reinsurance expense 7,248,653 6,612,885

24,628,791 25,263,214

16.1 Major insurance business is provided by Messrs. Punjab Provincial Cooperative Bank
Limited (PPCBL). PPCBL holds 73% of Saciely's shareholding.

17 Netinsurance claims

W Camspad 1,082,810 780,186
; Cutstanding claims including IBNR - opening 1,694,965 1,219,224
Qutstanding claims including IBNR - closing 1,728,872 1,694,965
Claims expense 1,116,717 1,255,807
Less:
Reinsurance and olher recoveries received 397 447 154 407
Reinsurance and other recoveries in respect
of outstanding claims - opening 166,347 105,352
Reinsurance and other recoveries in respect
of outstanding claims - closing 166,328 166,347
Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue 397 428 215,402

719,289 1,040,505

18 Net commission

Commission paid or payable ‘ 4,347,139 4,658,021
Deferred commission expense - opening 2,390,702 2,262,046
Deferred commission expense - closing 2,214 554 2,390,702

Nel commission 4,523,287 4,529,365

_ Less:
gﬁ_ Commission received or recoverable 1,191,174 1,148,630
Uneamed reinsurance commission - opening 896,197 725,845
Unearned reinsurance commission - closing 918,717 B96 197
Commission from reinsurance 1,168,654 978,278
3,354,633 3,551,087
19 Management expenses

Branch business expenses 19.1 12,833,847 13,735,321
Salaries, wages and benefits 19.2 5,423,546 6,347,118

Printing and stationery 1,285,608 1,462,607

Rent, laxes and electricily 1,155,593 899,081
Travelling and entertainment 675,898 791,137

Other expenses 917,282 676,835
Communicalion 759,560 639,299

23,051,334 24,551,398

19.1 The branch business expenses include Iravelling & conveyance, incentives lo staff, repairs and maintenance and other office expenses. It
also includes Rs. 6,340 (2023: 5,430) on account of contribution to the employees provident fund.

19.2 These include Rs. 98,112 (2023 Rs. 106,008) on account of contribution lo the employees provident fund.
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2024 2023

Investment income Note Rupees Rupeas
Dividend income from avaiable for sale investmenls 3,047,142 1,754 995
Income from tem deposits - Held to matunty 267,951 71,154
3,315,093 1,826,149
Other income
Fair value gain on revaluation of investment property 5 8,950,612 12,655,696
Miscellaneous receipls 2,551 .
Gan on disposal of property and equipment 43 421,180

9,374,343 12,655,696

Administrative and general expenses

Depreciation 4 5,406,153 4,336,445
Rent, rates and taxes 2,239,800 2,359,147
Legal and professional charges 2,306,266 2,153,363
Salaries, wages, and benefits 22.1 2,300,939 2,158,470
Travelling and vehicle running expenses 222 1,730,781 1,024,050
Chief executive / directors' remuneration 223 918,754 1,203,329
Repair and maintenance 813,330 414,150
Auditors' remuneration 224 450,000 375,000
Website and software mainlenance expenses 458,111 268,684
Fees and subscription expenses 439,384 231,025
Advertisement and publicity expenses 11,450 116,500
Insurance expenses 176,855 157,890
Other miscellaneous expenses 297,411 307,498
Amortization of computer scftware g 89,600
Bank charges 33,383 44,299

17,582,617 15,239,450

These include Rs. 56,601 (2023: Rs. 53,051) on account of contribution to the employees provident fund.
This includes Rs. 920,300 (2023: Rs. 507,400) on account of travelling allowance paid to directors of the Society for meetings.

Chief Executive / Directors' remuneration

The aggregate amounts of the remuneration including all benefits to the chief executive and directors of the Society charged in these
financial statements are as follows:

2024 2023
Chief Executive | Directors | Chief Execulive |  Directors
Rupees

Managerial remuneration 313,100 . 276,500 B
House renl allowance 267,000 . 243,000 -
Medical allowance 102,026 - 96,780 -
Overime . - 15,684 .
Bonus . . 59,950 -
Prowident fund 31,310 . 27,650 -
Travelling allowance 144,000 . 120,000 -
Other perquisites 61,318 - 363,765

918,754 . 1,203,329
Number of persons 1 9 1 8

No remuneration has been paid to the directors of the society, consistent with the bye laws of the Society. In addition to the above
benelils, the chief executive has been provided with a Society maintained car. Travelling and conveyance allowance has been paid to
directors of the company in the sum of Rs. 920,300 (2023: Rs. 507,400} for meeling purposes as decided and approved by the Board

!




2024 2023

22.4 Auditors' remuneration Note Rupees Rupees
Audit fee 350,000 250,000
Special certifications 100,000 125,000

450,000 375,000

23 LEVY Restated
Minimum tax (Tumover tax) 231 555,899 604,217
Final tax on dividend 231 457,071 273,922
1,012,970 878,139

231 This represents minimum lax and final taxes paid under section 113 and 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levy in
terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 and IAS 37.

23.2 The aggregate of minimum tax and final tax amounting fo Rs. 1.013 milion (2023: Rs. 0.878 million) being classified as levy represents
tax liability of the Society calculated under the relevant provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

Restated
'G 2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Current income tax B -
Deferred income tax
For the year 13 {1,259,229) (999,963)
(1,259,229) (999,963)
24.1 Reconciliation of current tax charge charged as per tax laws for the year, with current tax
recognized in the statement of profit or loss, is as follows:
Current tax liability for the year as per applicable tax laws 1,012,970 878,139
Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws, representing income tax under IAS . .
12
Portion of current tax computed as per tax laws, representing levy in terms of
requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37 1,012,370 878,139
A 1,012,970 878,139
24.2 Reconciliation of tax charge for the year

Profil before taxation 3,078,109 5,781,035
Tax @ 29% (2023: 29%) on prafit before taxation 892,942 1,676,500
Tax effect of final lax regime (883,672) (529,583)
Tax effect of add backs / allowed deductions (9,270} (1,146,917)
Deferred taxation {1,259,229) (999,963)

{1,259,229) (999.963)

24.3 Annual income tax return has been filed upto tax year 2024 for the year ended 31-12-2023 which is considered as deemed assessment
under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

24.4 The Company compules tax based on the generally accepted interpretations of the tax laws to ensure that sufficient provision for the
purpose of taxation is available, The tax liability of the Society is computed under the tumover tax regime being the highest of normal tax
and alternate corporate tax in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and classified as levy as disclosed in Note
23 above. The lax liability thal is classified as levy also includes final tax on dividend being levied as per the provisions of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Society has carried forward lax losses amounling to Rs. 9.456 million (2023: Rs. 5.072 million).

ANl
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Segment Information

L

Fire and Livestock and
December 31, 2024 property Motor SERAD Total
others
damage
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Premium receivable (inclusive of FED,
Federal insurance fee and administrative 14,070,418  7,018827  15542,228 36,631,473
surcharge)
Less: Sales tax (2,190,850)  (1,002,874) (2,420,020) (5,703,744)
Less: Federal insurance fee (133,099) (66,395) (147,022) (346,516)
. Gross direct written premium (inclusive of
®  administrative surcharge) 11746469 5859558 12,975,186 30,581,213
Gross direct premium 11,162,204 5,568,106 12,329,805 29,060,115
Administrative surcharge 584,265 291,452 645,381 1,521,098
11,746,469 5,859,558 12,975,186 30,581,213
Insurance premium earned 11,347,937 6,605,519 13,923,988 31,877,444
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers (1,281,085) (437,500 (5,530,068) (7,248,653)
Net insurance premium 10,066,852 6,168,019 8,393,920 24,628,791
Commission income 227,755 - 940,899 1,168,654
Net underwriting income (A) 10,294,607 6,168,019 9,334,819 25,797,445
A Insurance claims 786,861 449,488 (119,632) 1,116,717
Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers (80,568) 1,880 (318,739) (397,427)
Net claims 706,293 451,368 (438,371) 719,290
Commission expense 1,612,833 950,361 1,960,093 4,523,287
Management expenses 8,854,187 4,416,785 9,780,361 23,051,333
Premium deficiency reserve = % s -
Net insurance claims and expenses (B) 11,173,313 5,818,514 11,302,083 28,293,910
Underwriting results (A-B) (878,706) 349,505 (1,967,264) (2,496,465)
Investment income 3,315,093
Rental income 10,468,755
Other income 9,374,343
Administrative and general expenses (17,582,617)
Profit before taxation 3,079,109




Fire and property

Livestock and

wr!

December 31, 2023 { Total
damage Motor others
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Premium receivable (inclusive of FED,
Federal insurance fee and administrative 12,267,642 8,313,397 17,696,269 38,297,308
surcharge)
Less: Sales tax (1615366)  (1,092,901)  (2:326,399) (5,034,666)
Less: Federal insurance fee (105,430) (71,330) (151,837) (328,597)
Gross direct written premium (inclusive of
administrative surcharge) 10,566,846 7,149,166 15,218,033 32,934,045
Gross direct premium 10,040,187 6,792,846 14,459,555 31,292,588
Administrative surcharge 526,659 356,320 758,478 1,641,457

10,566,846 7,149,166 15,218,033 32,934,045
Insurance premium eamed 8,796,518 6,762,957 16,316,624 31,876,099
Insurance premium ceded to reinsurers (933,168)  (500,000)  (5,179,717) (6,612,885)
Net insurance premium 7,863,350 6,262,957 11,136,907 25,263,214
Commission income 127,083 851,195 978,278
Net underwriting income (A) 7,990,433 6,262,957 11,988,102 26,241,492
Insurance claims 255,188 698,545 302,174 1,255,907
Insurance claims recovered from reinsurers (165,704) (4,372) (45,326) (215,402)
Net claims 89,484 694,173 256,848 1,040,505
Commission expense 1,243,420 982,484 2,303,461 4,529,365
Management expenses 7,877,284 5,329,501 11,344,613 24,551,398
Premium deficiency reserve -
Net insurance claims and expenses (B) 9,210,188 7,006,158 13,904,922 30,121,268
Underwriting results (A-B) (1,219,755) (743,201) (1,916,820 (3,879,776)
Investment income 1,826,149
Rental income 10,418,416
Other income 12,655,696
Administrative and general expenses (15,239,450)
Profit before taxation 5,781,035
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26 Solvency Statement

Assets
Property and equipment
Investment property

Investments

Listed equity securities
Unlisted equity securities
Term deposits

Deferred commission expenses
Prepayments
Other receivables

3 Cash and bank

. -

Total assets
Inadmissible assets as per clause 32(2) of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000

Loan o staff
Immovable property and shares in the aggregate
Furniture & fixtures, office equipment and Motor vehicles

Admissible assets
Total liabilities

Undenwriting provisions
Qutstanding claims including IBNR
Unearned premium reserves
Unearned reinsurance commission

Deferred taxation

Insurance / reinsurance payables

Unclaimed dividend

Other creditors and accruals

Total liabilities

Total net admissible assets

Minimum solvency requirement (higher of followings)
Under section 36 (3) (a) of Insurance Ordinance, 2000
Under section 36 (3) (b) of Insurance Ordinance, 2000
Under section 36 (3) (c) of Insurance Ordinance, 2000

Net admissible assets in excess of solvency requirement

\L;-.wf

2024
Rupees

2,349,686,530
96,858,600

2,446,545,130

115,808,667
15,589,903
4,011,450

135,410,020

2,214,554
4,660,606
7,692,182

14,567,342
7,612,026

2,604,134,518

59,290
1,028,969,296
5,520,459

1,034,549,045

1,569,585,473

1,728,872
14,827,652
918,717
60,910,754
2,926,905
238,189
5,929,200

87,480,289

1,482,105,184

150,000,000
5,629,780
2,345,918

150,000,000

1,332,105,184




21 Management of Insurance Risk and Financial Risk
271 Insurance risk

The principal sk faced by the Socicty under insurance conlracts is the possibility that the insured event occurs, the uncertainty of the amount of the
resulting claims i e. the frequency and seventy of claims and that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilites. By the very nature of an insurance conlract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable. The objective of the Society is 1o ensure that
sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities,

The Society manages these risks through its undenwriting siralegy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive claims handling. The underwriting
stralegy aims to minimize insurance risks with a balanced mix and spread of business classes and by observing undenwriting guidelines and limits. The
Society underwrites mainly propery, fire, motor, live stock and other miscellaneous business. These classes of insurance are generally regarded as
shor-term insurance contracts where claims are normally intimated and sellled within a short time span, usually one year. This helps lo mitigate
insurance nsk,

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria, For example, the Society has the night not to renew individual policies, it can
impose deductibles and it has the night lo reject the payment of a fraudulent claim. For large risks, particularly in property segment of business, risk
nspections are carried oul belore accepting the risks. Similarly, in case of large risks, annual renewals are also preceded by on-site surveys. Where
needed, risk mitigation measures are idenlified and communicated to the clients to improve the risk to an acceptable level.

Reinsurance arrangements in place include treaty and facullative arangements, on proportional and non-proportional basis and also include
catastrophe cover. The effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the Society may not suffer ultimate net insurance losses beyond the Society's
risk appetite in any one year.

For reinsurance cover, the Sociely's 100% amangement of reinsurance is dependent on Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited which is a Government
owned entity with sound and stable financial outiook and having credit rating of AA+ as determined by Messrs. VIS Credit Rating Company Limited on
February 27, 2024.

Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like political violence, environmental and economical, atmospheric disturbances,
nalural disasters, concenlration of risks, civil riols ele. The Society manages these risks through the measures described above. The Sociely has
limited its exposure to catasirophic and riol events by use of reinsurance arrangements. The Society monitors concentration of insurance risks
primarily by class of business. The table below sets out the concentration of the claims and premium liabilities (in percentage terms) by class of business
at the reporting date:

2024 2023
Class Gn_:ss Net claims Clow He-t G"F’“ Netclaims | Gross premium Net premium
claims |\ iities | Premium | premium | claims | o e | pabiles iabilties
liabilities liabilities | liabilities | liabilities
% % % % % % % %
Fire and property damage 70.50 98.20 35.60 40.90 20.30 8.60 27.60 31.10
Motor 40.30 62.80 20.70 25.00 55.60 66.70 21.20 24.80
Miscellaneous (10.70) (60.90) 43.70 34.10 24.10 24.70 51.20 44.10
100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Since the Society operates in Pakistan only, hence, all the insurance risks refate to policies written in Pakistan,
The Society class wise major gross risk exposure is as follows:
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Fire and property damage 783,097,933 704,456,400
Motor 292,977,900 357,458,300
Miscellancous 1,230,941,528 1,462,202,939

Sources of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date relates to valuation of outstanding claims, whether reported or not, and includes expected
claims seftlemen costs. Considerable judgment by management is required In the estimalion of amounts due to policyholders arising from claims made
under insurance confracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumplions about several faclors involving varying and possibly significant
degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ from management's estimates resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities.
Qualitative judgments are used to assess Ihe exlent to which past rends may not apply in the future, for example one-off occurrence, changes in market
faclors such as public attitude 1o claiming and economic conditions. Judgment is further used to assess the extent to which extemal factors such as
judicial decisions and government legislation aflect the estlimales.

In particular, estimates have lo be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the reporting dale and for the expected ultimate cost of
claims incurred bul nol reported (IBNR) at the reporting date,

O
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Process used to decide on assumptions

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in neutral estimates of the most likely
or expecled outcome. The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with cerainly the likely outcome of any particular claim and the
ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis with due regard to claim circumstances, information
available from surveyors and hislorical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case estimales are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new
information is available

The estimation of IBNR s generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cosl of settling claims already notified to the
Society, in which case information about the claim event is available. IBNR provisions are initially estimated at a gross level and a separate calculation is
carnied out to estimate the size of the reinsurance recoveries, The estimation process takes into account the past claims reporting pattern and delails of
reinsurance programs.

The premium liabilities have been determined such that the total premium liability provisions (uneamed premium reserve and premium deficiency
reserve) would be sufficient to service the future expected claims and expenses likely lo occur on the unexpired policies as of the reporting date. The
expected future liability is determined using estimates and assumptions based on the experience during the expired period of the contracts and
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable,

Sensitivity Analysis

The Society believes that the claim liabililies under insurance contracts outstanding at the year end are adequate. However, these amounls are not
certain and actual payments may differ from the claims labilities provided in the financial stalements. The impact on the profit / (loss) before tax and
shareholders' equity of the changes in the claim liabilities net of reinsurance is analyzed below, The sensitivity to changes in claim liabilities net of
reinsurance is defermined separately for each class of business while keeping all other assumptions constant.

| Profit before taxation | Shareholders' equity |
2024 2023 2024 2023
Impact of change in claim liabilities by +10% Rupees  Rupees Rupees Rupees
Fire and property damage (68,740)  (43,983) (48,805) (31,228)
Motor (34,528)  (43931) (24,515) (31.191)
Miscellaneaus (69,620)  (81,583) (49,430) (57.924)
_(172,888)  (169.457) (122,750) {120,343}
Impact of change in claim liabilities by -10%
Fire and properly damage 68,740 43.983 48,805 31.228
Motor 34,528 43931 24,515 31191
Miscellaneous 69,620 81,583 49,430 57.924
172,888 169,497 122,750 120,343

Financial Risk

Financial risk factors

The Society's activilies expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and fiquidity risk. The Society's overall risk management policies
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). The Board provides principles for overall risk management. The Society is
exposed to various risks in refation lo financial instruments. The main types of risks are markel risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk
Markel risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of change in market prices such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair vaiue or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign cumency exchange
rates. Currency risk anses mainly from fulure commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.
As al Ihe reporting date, the Society 1s not exposed to currency risk as it has no receivable or payables in foreign currency.

{ii) Interest rate risk

Interest risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will flucluate because of change in markel interest rates. The
Society has securities and deposils that are subject to interest rale risk . The Sociely limits interest rate risk by monitoring changes in interest rates in
the curencies in which its financial assels are denominated,

1[.1“"
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As al the reporting date the interes! rate profile of the Society's interest bearing financial instruments was as under.

December 31, 2024
Interest bearing (floating rate instruments) || Non-Interest bearing
Maturity up ||Maturity after|[ ¢ || Maturity upto 1] Maturity after " subotal
to 1 year 1 year year year
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Financial assets
“Gash and other equivalents . : ; 7,612,026 . 7,612,026
Investments 1,500,000 . 1,500,000 133,910,020 133,910,020
Insurance / reinsurance receivables . 863,435 863,435
Reinsurance recoveries . - . 166,328 166,328
Secunty deposits - 2 g 59,400 . 59,400
Sundry receivables . " 3,744,243 . 3,744,243
1,500,000 1500000 146,355,452 - 146,355,452
Financial Liabilities
Outstanding claims - i ) 1.728.872
including IBNR i2ail 145
Insurance / reinsurance payables - . 2,926,905 - 2,926,905
Other creditors and accruals - - 5,271,679 - 5,271,679
Unclzimed dividend - 238,189 - 238,188
- 10,165,645 . 10,165,645
December 31, 2023
Inferest bearing (floaling rate instruments) || Non-Inlerest bearing
Maturity upto  Malurity after Maturityupto 1 Maturity after 1
1 year Ve Sub-total year yaar Sub-total
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Financial assets
Cash and other equivalents - i 12,059,208 - 12,059,298
Investments - - - 88,460,406 - 88,460,406
Insurance / reinsurance receivables - - - 1,280,667 - 1,290,667
Reinsurance recoveries - - . 166,347 - 166,347
Security deposits - - - 59,400 59,400
Sundry receivables - - - 3,950,260 - 3,850,260
- - - 105,966,378 - 105,986,378
Financial Liabilities
Quistanding claims - i i i 1694 965 i 1694 965
including IBNR ¥ e
Insurance / reinsurance payables - . 1,305,440 1,305,440
Other creditors and accruals - - - 5,006,618 - 5,006,618
Unclaimed dividend - - 238,189 - 238,189
- - 8,245,212 . 8,245,212

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
For cash flow sensitivity analysis of vanable rate instruments a hypothetical change of 100 basis points in interesl rales at the reporting date
would have impacted the prolt or loss for the year. The society has investment in term deposils at the reporting date. The effective interest /
mark-up rates for interesl / mark-up bearing financial instruments are mentioned in the relevant noles to these financial stalements.

Sensitivity analysis

As al the reporting date, the Society had no financial instruments valued at fair value through profit or loss. For cash flow sensilivity analysis
of variable rate instruments, a hypothetical change of 100 basis points in interest rates during the year would have increased / decreased

profit for the year by the amounts shown below:

g/
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December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

Credit risk

Effect on profit or Effect on
Ch'"““:_: baxle loss befare shareholder's
polni taxation equity
Rupees in "000"
100 2,680 1,903
(100) (2,680) (1,903)
100 712 506
(100) (712) (506)

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the
other party fo incur a financial loss. The Society attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions
with a large number of counterparties in various industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a result, any change in
economic, palilical or other conditions would affect their ability to meel contractual obligations in similar manner. The Society’s credil risk
exposure is not significantly different from the reflected in these financial statements. The management monitors and limits the Society’s
exposure to credit risk through monitoring of client’'s exposure and conservative estimates of provisions for doubtful assets, if any. The
management is of the view that il is not exposed to significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are adequately diversified in
entities of sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:

Financial assets

Investment in equily securities
Term deposits

Sundry receivables

Insurance / reinsurance receivables

Reinsurance recoveries against oulstanding claims

Securily deposits
Cash at bank

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
131,398,570 85,948,956
4,011,450 2511450
3,744,243 3,950,260
863,435 1,290,667
166,328 166,347
59,400 59,400
7,107,317 11,674,452
147,350,743 105,601,532

The credit quality of bank balances and deposits can be assessed with reference 1o exteral credit ratings where avallable, or to historical
information about counterparty default rates. Banks and financial institutions have extemal credit ratings determined by various credit rating
agencies. Credit quality of customers and other receivables are assessed by reference to historical defaults rates and present ages. Banks
and financial institutions have external credit ratings determined by various credit rating agencies as listed below :

Bank Al Falah Limited

First Women Bank

Muslim Commercial Bank

Punjab Provincial Cooperative Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited

Malional Bank of Pakistan

COC (Investor Account Services)

\wn

Rating ;
Shertiann | Longienn Rating agency 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Al+ AAA PACRA 146,524 146,524
A2 A- PACRA 137 737
A Al PACRA 57,299 336,867
A2 BBB+ PACRA 5,321,857 9474641
Alt AAA PACRA 1,426,173 1,550,321
Al+ AAA PACRA 111,850 116,444
Not Raled AA- Fitch Rating 42,777 48,918
7,107,317 11,674,452
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The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings. Due lo long standing
business relationships with these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-
performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Society. Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

The credit quality of Society's exposure on equity instruments can be assessed with reference to external rating as follows:

Ratings || Rating agenc 2024 e
g g Agency Rupees Rupees
Pakistan Re-insurance Company Limited AA+ VIS 36,761,306 17,994,554
Ferozesons Laboratories Limited A PACRA 79,047,361 52,008,379
Punjab Provincial Cooperative Bank Limited BBB+ PACRA 13,712,753 13,663,203
National Cooperative Supply Corporation A - 1,877,150 2,292,620
131,398,570 85,948,956

The credit quality of amounts due from reinsurer and claim recoveries therefore can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as

follows:

Reinsurance Recoveries against outstanding claims

Ratings || Rating agen ot e
9 jogoney Rupees Rupees
Pakistan Re-insurance Company Limited AA+ VIS 166,328 166,347

As at the reporting date, amounts in respect of reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims are considered good, recovered
subsequent to the reporting date and are classified as due within one year,

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk thal the Society will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management

implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities. The Sociely finances ils operations through equity and working capital with a
view o maintaining an appropriale mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. Following are the contractual maturities of

financial liabilities:

December 31, 2024

Financial liabilities Carrying Contractual ; ;
ot On demand iy flg 1 year or less 1-2 years 2-5 years
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Qutstanding claims including IBNR 1,728,872 1,728,872 1,728,872 . .
Insurance / reinsurance payables 2,926,905 2,926,905 2,926,905 - . s
Unclaimed dividend 238,189 238,189 238,189
Other creditors and accruals 5,271,679 5,271,679 5,271,679 . i
10,165,645 10,165,645 10,165,645 . .
December 31, 2023
Financial liabilities Carrying Contraclual
Aiokind On demand G Mows 1 year or less 1-2 years 2-5 years
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
QOutstanding claims including IBNR 1,694,965 1,694,965 1,694,965 - .
Insurance / reinsurance payables 1,305,440 1,305,440 1,305,440 - -
Unclaimed dividend 238,189 238,189 238,180
Other creditors and accruals 5,006,618 5,006,618 5,006,618 .
8,245,212 8,245,212 8,245,212 - -

Al
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Equity I Price Risk

Orter pnce rsk represents the nek that the fa value of future cash fiows of a financial instrument will Rucluale because of changes in market prices (other than thos ansing from interest rate
FiSk o cumenty nsk). whether those changes mmmwmmmmmmﬁmmumw_umaﬂwganmuwhmmmaaau
markel

The Sacety's equly mvestments amountng to Rs' 115 809 million (2023, Rs: 70 003 million) are susceplitde fo macket pce fisk ansing from uncertainty about the future value of investment
sotuntes The Socely kmis the market fsk by dwersifyng its equity westment porfolio and by actively monitoring the developments in equity and money markets The Socety aiso has
rvestment in unfsted equily mstryments amountng to Rs. 15,580 million (2023: Rs, 15 946 millon), whose value is based on therr audiled financial stalements, which represent the shares of
large corporate entites with sound financal foolng and stable results.

Tri tabie below summanzes the Socely's markel price fisk as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 1t shows the efiect of 3 10% increase and 10% decrease in the market prices of equely
rvestmen's &5 o those dates on the Socely's other comprehensive income and equity. Had al listed equity nvestments been measured al fair values 2s required by IAS 39, Financal

Ingtrumenis. Recogninan and Measurement, the impadt of hypothetical change would be as follows: -
024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Fair Value 131,398,570 85,948,956
Estimated fair value due to changes:
10% increass 144538407 84,543,852
10% decrease 118,258,713 77,354,060
Effiect on other comprehensive income before taxation:
10% increass 13,139,857 8,594,896
10% decrease (13,139,857} (8,594,896)
Effact on shareholders equity
10% increass 8,329,298 £.102.376
10% decrease {9,329,298) (6,102,376)
h il 2023
Rupees Rupees

2% Eamings per share
231 Basic earnings per share

Prafif for the year afier laxabon atinbulable to Socely's sharchoiders 3,325,358 5.902.859
Weghted average number of crdinary shares culstanding dunng the year 50,003,240 50,003,240
Eamings per share 0.06T Q118

4.2 Diluted earnings per share

ki

<>,

N

to figure for dluted eamings per shace has boen presented as the Socely has not issued any instrument which would have an impact on eamings per share when exercised.

Capital risk managemaenl

The Socicty's chjective when managing capdal is lo safequdrd the Sociely's ability bo continue &5 a geing concem and meed the regulilory, solvency and paid up capllal requirements so that o
can conlinue to provade retums for shareholders and benefits for other slakeholders.

The Scocety manages ifs capelal struclure by momilonng retum on ned assels and making adastments to il in the hight of changes in economic condibons. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Sociely may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assels to reduce debl There were no changes in the Socety's
approach o capdal management dunng the year The Sociely is not subject lo externally imposed capital requirements.

Retumn on assels f equily is compuled as foflows

piirl] 2073
Rupees Rupees
Pt before tavabion 3,079,109 5781035
Ket assels [ equily 2,516,654, 229 2.451,059.635
FReturmn on shareholdess’ equety 0.12% 0.23%

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Farvalue is the pce that would be recoived to sell an assel or paid to transfer a iability in an orderly Iransaction between market paricipants al the measurement dale under cument market
conditons (1e an ext prce) regardiess of whelner that pna is directly observabla or estimated using another valuation technique.

Underying the definition of fair value is the presumplion thal the Society is @ going conoem and there is no inention o requirement I curtad maleriafly the scale of ils operations or o
underake a frangaction gn adverse lorms

A fnancal instrument is regarded as quoted i an active marked if quoled prices are readily and regularly avallable from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing senvice, of
fequiatory agency, and those pnces represent aciual and regulalory occurmng markel Iransacions on an anms’ length basis.

Fair valug hierarchy
Judgmenis and estimates are made in determinang the fair values of the financial nstruments that are recognized and measured &t fair value in these financial statements. To provide an
indication about the rediabiity of the inputs used i determining fai value, the Sociaty has dlassified its financial instruments imlo the following three levels:

Level 1 Cuoted prees {unadusted) in active market for idenbical assels or habdilies.
Level 2 Inputs other than quoled prees included wihin fevel 1 that are observable for the assel or liability, either directly (i e. as paces) of indireclly 1 e. dnve from prices).
Leved 3 Inpuls for assel of hablity thal are not based on observable market dala (uncbservable inpuls).

o



The Society recognizes Iranstors betwoon levels. of the farr value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the ranster has ccrusrred The Socety's policy for determining when
Hauh:bﬂmmmlhqwmhmwmnmmﬂmum tactors

1- changes in market and trading actwiy (0.9 sgnificant incroases | decreases in actily), end
2 changes in inpuls used i valuation bechniques (e g npuls becoming / ceasing to be observabla in the market)

Iheco were no transhers between the love's of the fair value hieranchy duning the year
The campng va'es of all ofher hrancal assets and kabdities rebected in these finanaal stalements approximales their fair valves

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

Valuabon lechnegues wsed to valve land. budding and mvestment propery are disclosed in Noles 4 1 and 5.1 respeclively of these financial slalemenls The market value of listed equity
metrumonts have been determned in accordance with the PSX index as -al the reporting dale whereas the unlisted equily instruments are measured with reference to the breakup valus of
TVESIoR Companses based o ther annua! audied inancal slatements.

The Fallowing table shows Ihe camyng amounts and farr values of assets and hablibes, ncluding thewr levels in the Fair value hierarchy. It does nol include fair vatus information for assets and
babiities not measwred at lar value ff the camying ameount 15 a reasonable approximabon of fair value.

Carrying amount Fair value
December 31,2024 FvoCi FVTPL | Assets - at | Lisbilities - at Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Amartized | Amortized
Cost Cost
" Financial agsets measured ot fair value
isvesteont in ksted 115,808,667 B : - 7 - 3 115808657
115,808,667  115,808,66 808,
ryeaimen: o uksied 15,569,903 5 . . 15,588,903 15,589,803 . # 15,569,903
solunies
Wan-financial assets measured at hat value
| @0 and buiging 2,344 166,071 - . - 2,344,166,071 < 2344,166,0T1 - 2,344, 166,071
Indestment propeny 96,858,600 . - - 96,858,600 . 96,558,600 - 56,858,600
Funancial sssets pol measured ot fasr value
Irvestment m dobi secunbes . . 4,011,450 . 4,011,450 E = -
Inguranca el B . 4,833,406 . 4,833 406 - -
recovatios and olhel asiels
Cash bnd bark baances . . 7,612,026 . 7612026 . -
. Noncfinancial ssseis not meazured at fair valug
{-. Oner Eacy gssers - - 5,520,459 . 5520439 - . . .
Prepayments and taes - - 9733938 . 9,733,936 . . - -
2572423201 - W2 - 2604134518 131,386,570 2.441.024.6T1 - 2,572,423241
Finances! habifitses mot measured 2t fair value
Ouwstand g clams a . . 1,728,872 1,728,872 - . = .
Othes credions and papabics . . . 8,146,584 B,198,584 B . .
Untgimod dwionnd = : . 238,189 238,189 . . .
Non-financial liabilties not measured o lair value
|neared promum (eLones = . . 14,827,652 14,827,652
Lnpamed IEqgurance COMmLe on - . . 818,717 18,17 .
I et drd taves payatis . . . 657,52 657,521 .
fctorrod taxaton * . . 60,910,754 60,910,754 .
87,480,289 87,480,289 - . . -

o



Carmying amounl Fair value
December 31 VO FVTPL [Fiancial sssets | Financial labifies Tolal Level 1 Level 2 Lewi3 Tolal
. ol Amoriired | ol Amoriired Cost
Cost

Einancis asssts measured ol tok vahw
Inwestment in Isted securites 70,002,933 . . - 70,002,933 10,002 939 . . 70,002.933
Irvestmend in undsled securbes 15,946,023 . - - 15,046,023 15,546,023 . 15,948,023
boo-financial sveets megsy wd oL vilg.
Land and bulding 2,348,530.075 - - - 2348530075 - 2348530075 2,348, 530,075
Evestment propesty 87,907,588 i 2 - 87,507,988 B 87,907 968 - B7.507 548
Financial assets not
measured ol fa valon
Iimvesimeni in debl securiies - - 2511450 =3 2511450 - - 5 -
Frsurance relsted " - 5406674 - 5,466,674 - - - -
racehvables and ofher gssels
Cash and bank balances - = 120597208 - 12,059,268 = = = =
Nos-Brancial essets not
measured at ki valie
Orther fixed mssets - . 4,504 628 = 4,504 628 - - -
Prepayments and tues . - 9503676 - 9,503,676 - - .

2.522.38T 018 - M0M5TH - 2556432745 85,545,956 2.436.438,063 - 2.522,381.019
Einancial Estiifies nol megpred of ok valig
Chutsianding claims . i : 1,604 965 1,654,965 " " . ¥
Other recioes and K - - 6,312,058 £,312,058 - - . -
payadles
Unclammed dhadend . . - 238,189 238,189 - - . -
tonrfnancal kbities nol Metasued ot fic vl
Unearned premium reserves : . L 16,123,883 16,123,883 4 . . .
Urngseted IBirSUTBNCS GoMIEssion L = ¢ 896,197 896,197
o snd bves pomee . . RN R {5 S R < . . . -
Deferrs tuaton = - . 48989595 48949505 5 g g i

= . - 75,373,110 75,373,110 - -

Related party disclosure

Related parties comprise of directors, chief executive, ofher key management personnel and stafl refirement benefit plans. The ransactions with related parties are camed out at commercial
lerms and conditions except for compensation 1o key management personnel which are on employment terms. Outstanding balances with related parties, contribution to provident fund and
remuneration to chief executive and direclors of the Society have already been disclosed in Notes 19 and 22 of these financial stalements. In addition to this, there were no other ransactions

caried out during the year with any related party that may require any disclosure in these financial stalements.
Disclosure of Emplayees Provident Fund Trust -Related Party

The following information is based on the unaudited financial statements of the Employees Provident Fund maintained by the Society.

024 023
Rupees Rupees
Size of fund 1,197,764 1,460,132
Mumber of members 0 20
Cost of investment - Bank Balance 1,497,764 1,460,132
Percentage of investment 100% 100%
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HEAD OFFICE

Cooperative Insurance Building,

Phones:

37356537,
042-37352306,37242798

ZB-Shahralh-é-Quaid-e-Azam Fax: 042-37352794
Lahore. Email: info@ coinsopl.com
Fateh Khan Niazi " Chief Executive Officer 0322-9490777
Shoaib Ahmed Waseem Financial Advisor 0300-0803060
Fahad Amjad Acting Chief Financial Officer 0300-0400576
Shahbaz Hussain Khadim Head of Internal Auditor 0333-4555001
Malik Muhammad Ashraf Manager Underwriting 0322-4545283
Muhammad Zohaib Asstt: Compliance Officer 0328-4481221
Muhammad Jamil Bhatti Asstt: Manager Re-insurance 0322-4318241

ZONAL OFFICES

Bahawalnagar
Rai Anwaar Alam

Branch Manager

Chowk Tasneem Fowara

0333-1630650
0300-7585601

M. Rashid Kitchlew

23-Shahrah-e-Quaide-e-Azam, Lahore

0300-4292277

Zonal Manager

Sattar Ahmed Shoaib Manzil, Chowk Chohan Park, Lahore. Res: 37923661

Zonal Manager 0300-4870280
0323-4870280

Karachi -1 REGIONAL OFFICES

Mirza Anwar Baig Nadir House, 3 Floor, P.O. Box No. 4814, Off; 32411840

Chief Manager I.I. Chundrigarh Road, Karachi 0300-2313632

Liaquat Ali 0333-2136754

Branch Manager

Karachi-2

Tahir Mehmood Qureshi Office No. 18, Kareem Plaza, Near Civic 0322-2032013

Development Centre, Gulshan-e-Igbal Karachi.

(anager Sevein ! g SRS ERER 0300-9237978

Multan

Hassan Faryal Bhutta Chowk Katchery P.O. Box No. 119 0332-1743042

Regional Manager 0300-6338415

Multan-2 Upper Store Shopping Centre No. 3, Opp: 0305-2007809 0333-

Sved Wagqar Ali Rizvi
Branch Manager

Mall Plaza, Multan Cantt.

6388157




BRANCH OFFICES

— 8§ _w o
isalabad
Rai Nawazish Ali Quaid-e-Azam Road, Tandlianwala 0333-6581781
Branch Manager 0342-5825565
Gujranwala
Asad Javaid Malik 58-B, Trust Plaza, G.T. Road, 0321-7441724
Branch Manager
0300-7593106
Sheikhupura
Asad Javaid Malik Sheikhupura 0300-7593106
Branch Manager 0321-7441724
Sargod

M. Taufiq Paracha
Branch Manager

Opp: City Post Office, Main Road,
Block No. 5

Off: 7323459
Res: 3213459
0300-9609161

Branch Manager

Ghazi Khan.

Rawalpindi

Muzaffar Hussain Shah 53/8, Haider Road, Off: 5566232
Branch Manager 0333-5341722
Okara

Abdul Rahim Gohar Clo. Haji Motors, G.T.Road, 0333-4565378
Branch Manager Renala Khurd

Rahim Yar Khan

Khadim Hussain Bhatti B-80, Umer Block, Abbasia Town 0333-7453191
Branch Manager 0300-4278782
Sahiwal

Kashif Rafiq House No. 775, M-Block , Fareed Town, 0300-6937275
Branch Manager Sahiwal. 0312-6937275
D.G. Khan

Mian Javed Block No. 2, Quaid-e-Azam Road, Dera 0300-6781253

0334-6781253




